
 

 
 

 
 

         25 February 2016 
 
 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 7 March 2016 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

in the 
Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF 

 
 
TO: Councillor Rupert Kyrle (Chairman) 
 Councillor Daniel Clarke (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Margaret Allingham Councillor Janice Asman 
Councillor Louise Bloom Councillor Carol Boulton 
Councillor Jerry Hall Councillor Keith House 
Councillor Angel Myerscough Councillor Emma Norman 
Councillor Derek Pretty Councillor Bruce Tennent 
Councillor Jane Welsh  

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8112;   

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Julia Birt, Local Area Co-ordinator Tel: 023 8068 8437;           
Email: julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
RICHARD WARD 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 
other languages, upon request. 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

Eastleigh House 
Upper  Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Public Participation     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 12)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2016. 
  
3. Apologies     
 
4. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
5. Recommendations of Hedge End, West End and Botley Youth Council for Youth 

Grants    (Pages 13 - 18) 
 
6. Chairman's Report     
 
7. Area Co-ordinator's Report     
 
8. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
9. Planning Application - Land at Hatch Farm, North of Barbe Baker Avenue West 

End, Southampton    (Pages 19 - 54)  

 Construction of 98no. Dwellings with access from Barbe Baker Avenue and 
Barnsland, associated landscaping, parking, new footpath, children’s play area, 
attenuation pond and diversion of 3no. Public  rights of way (Ref: F/15/77718) 

  
10. Planning Application - 1 Pudbrooke Gardens, Hedge End.    (Pages 55 - 64)  

 Change of use from domestic dwelling (C3) to residential care home (C2) (Ref: 
F/15/77732.) 

  
11. Planning Appeals      

 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
 

T/15/77199 - Appeal against the Council’s refusal of application to carry out 
works to protected trees at 15 Dumbleton Close, Kanes Hill, Southampton  
 
This was a delegated decision 
 
F/15/77145 - Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for 
a first floor side extension at 229 Cranbourne Park, Hedge End, 
Southampton. SO30 0PA  
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 



F/15/77244 – Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission 
for change of use from A1 (retail) to A5 (hot food takeaway). Installation of 
extractor ventilation system and flue at Hedge End Butchers, 5A Lower 
Northam Road, Hedge End, Southampton, SO30 4FN. 
 
This was a delegated decision 

 
(b) that the following appeals have been dismissed:- 
 

F/15/75840 – Appeal against the refusal of application for the erection of 
2No.three bedroom dwellings with associated car parking and amenity 
space at land to the rear of 82 St Johns Road, Hedge End, Hampshire, 
SO30 4DF. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
F/15/76328 – Appeal against the refusal of application for the a first floor 
extension to the existing ground floor footprint at 1 Marvin Way, Botley, 
Hampshire SO30 2EG. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
C/15/76670 - Appeal against the refusal of application for the erection of a 
pitched roof over the existing flat roof garage at The Shambles, 45 High 
Street, Botley. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
F/14/75261 – Appeal against the refusal of application for ‘an extension in 
my garden to give me a second bedroom’ at 61 Cheltenham Gardens, 
Hedge End 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

  
12. Allocation of Developers' Contributions    (Pages 65 - 68) 
 
13. Naming of Streets, former Moorgreen Hospital Site, West End    (Pages 69 - 72) 
 
14. Funding for Local Projects    (Pages 73 - 78) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 21 March 2016 at 7:00 pm 

in the Botley Community Centre, Recreation 
Ground, High Street, Botley, SO30 2ES 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s happening in 

the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates with news as it 
happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus lots more. 

www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



303 
 

 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 11 January 2016  (7:00 pm – 9:28 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Kyrle (Chairman); Councillors Allingham, Boulton, Hall, House, 
Norman, Pretty, Tennent and Welsh 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Clarke, Bloom and 
Myerscough 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 
REMEMBRANCE 

This was the first meeting of the Committee following the sad news that 
Councillor Tony Noyce had passed away in December 2015. Tony had 
been a valued member of this Committee for eight years, a West End 

Parish Councillor since 2003, and had held the office of Mayor in 2014/15. 
The Chairman asked the Committee and members of the public to join him 

in a minute’s silence of reflection. 
 

419. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr Carey raised concerns regarding the shuttle bus which ran from the 
Ageas Bowl through West End village on event days. He reported that in 
2015 there had been more than 600 bus journeys to and from the village 
centre and, although there had been no accidents reported, it was only a 
matter of time before one happened. He asked that the bus be re-routed 
via the Thornhill roundabout or the motorway and sought the Committee’s 
assistance in this matter. The Chairman advised that Mr Carey’s concerns 
would be passed onto the relevant officers and asked him to provide his 
contact details to the Local Area Co-ordinator.  
 

420. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2015 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

421. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 

1

Agenda Item 2



304 
 

 

 
422. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 

 
This item was omitted from the agenda but included in the meeting. The 
Chairman reported the following: 
 
Itchen Valley Country Park 
 
The Council had engaged a consultancy firm to review the current uses 
and performance of the country park. The consultants’ report would also 
analyse options to expand the current facilities. In particular, the 
consultants had been asked to recommend improvements to the catering 
provision. The full report was being concluded and would be available for 
Members’ consideration at a future team meeting. 
In the meantime, ‘Go Ape’ had been progressing the Treetop Junior 
initiative. This would mean that children aged 5 - 10 could take part in this 
activity with their families as the new course was specifically designed for 
them. The course construction was well underway and it was hoped that it 
would be completed by February half term. Additional car parking would 
also be available after Easter. 
 
Botley Neighbourhood Plan 

 
The Council’s Cabinet had formally designated the Botley Neighbourhood 
Area in accordance with the submission by Botley Parish Council. 
 
Local Plan consultation roadshow 

 
Residents were being urged to have their say on the blueprint for 
development, including housing, in Eastleigh Borough over the next 20 
years. To help Eastleigh Borough Council prepare a new local plan, it was 
seeking the views of residents, businesses and other interested parties on 
issues including the amount of development needed in Eastleigh; where 
new developments should be located; and how they might be delivered. 
 
A consultation document, Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-36 – Issues 
and Options, went live on Wednesday 23 December 2015 and this public 
consultation process would run until 17 February 2016 and include a 
borough-wide touring exhibition where residents would have the chance to 
speak to planning officers and give their views.   
 
The roadshows in the Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) area 
were as follows:- 
 
Thursday 21 January 2016, 3pm to 9pm, Botley Centre  
Thursday 28 January 2016, 3pm to 9pm, Itchen Valley Country Park, West 
End 
Saturday 30 January 2016, 10am to 4pm, 2000 Centre, Hedge End. 
 
 

2



305 
 

 

Street nameplates 

 
This Committee continued to fund replacement street nameplates in the 
HEWEB area. On average 60 nameplates were replaced per year and 
each request was assessed on the basis of the condition of the existing 
nameplate. Residents and Members were welcome to submit requests 
which would then be added to the rolling list in order of priority. 
 

423. AREA CO-ORDINATOR'S REPORT 
 
This item was omitted from the agenda but included in the meeting. The 
Local Area Co-ordinator reported the following: 

 
Berrywood wildflower meadow and footpath 
 
Work to enhance the entrances to the wildflower meadow behind 
Berrywood School had been ordered and would be completed in January 
2016. In addition, two benches would be relocated to this area; one would 
be situated in the open space, and one off the footpath. The footpath had 
become very well used especially by local residents walking their dogs and 
by those who simply enjoy a casual walk or going for a run.  
 
Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) Business Network 
 
Further to the report at the last Committee meeting, the inaugural meeting 
of the HEWEB business network was held on 9 December 2015. The 
members of the network wished to continue meeting and as a result, the 
next meeting would be held on 29 January 2016 at Clarke Willmott’s 
offices in Hedge End. This meeting would focus on planning policy for the 
Borough and its impact on local businesses. 
 
HEWEB Youth Partnership 
 
At the December 2015 meeting of the Partnership, it was confirmed that 
West End Parish Council had secured lottery funding for a second youth 
club to be opened in the Chartwell Green area. This would open for one 
night in the first year; two nights in the second year and three nights in the 
third year. The pavilion and playing fields in Cutbush Lane would be the 
base for the youth club. Many congratulations to Nikki Penny and her 
team. 
 
The Youth Partnership also received reports from The Box, King’s 
Community Church, Botley Friday Night Football, and Groundwork, who 
run the Toast Office in Botley and conduct outreach work across the 
HEWEB area in conjunction with Donna Brewer. Partnership members 
were also asked to consider allocating funding towards a football 
tournament to be held across the HEWEB area, TADIC (Teenage Drop in 
Centre) and vocational training. 
 
 

3



306 
 

 

Wildern School 

 
The Wildern Community Management Committee recently approved joint 
funding with the County Council for an all - weather pitch. The need to 
increase pupil numbers at Wildern had meant a loss of facilities and this 
was why the new all - weather pitch was required. This new facility would 
not be floodlit due to the proximity of neighbouring houses but it would still 
be available for community use, especially during the school holidays. It 
was hoped that the new pitch would be open in the summer. 
 
The Committee also discussed the leisure centre’s swimming pool roof 
which was installed in the 1960’s. The condition of the roof was 
deteriorating rapidly and it was in need of a complete replacement. Also 
given the success of the resident swimming club, ‘Wildern Waves’, there is 
a need to consider incorporating spectator seating within any new project. 
Members of the Community Management Committee would be invited to 
form a working party to agree the scope of the project and to develop the 
business case in order to progress funding opportunities. 
 

424. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
Development Management staff gave a short presentation on guidelines 
that had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; 
in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  
This was set against the broader policy framework. 
 

425. PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND OFF BUBB LANE, WEST END, 
SOUTHAMPTON 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 6) concerning an outline application for 
residential development of up to 200no. dwellings with all matters 
reserved. (Ref: O/15/77112). 
 
The Committee were advised that a letter of objection had been received 
from Moorgreen Residents’ Association citing that the land was not 
allocated for development; land was countryside and in the strategic gap; 
development would undermine separate village identity and loss of 
residential and community amenity; out of character/visually intrusive; 
traffic and highway safety impacts, including cumulative impacts, 
inadequately addressed; unsustainable location in respect of transport 
options; impact on trees and habitats; and flooding issues. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That Outline permission be REFUSED for the recommended reasons 
set out in the report. 
 
(NOTES: (a) The Chair of Moorgreen Residents’ Association, and a 
member of Hedge End Town Council spoke in objection to the application 

4



307 
 

 

citing a number of issues including the following: although there was a 
reduction in the proposed properties it was still a hostile application; 
urbanisation; huge lorries along narrow lanes; increased traffic/congestion; 
Maunsell Way would become a rat run; speed limit; additional school 
children; gridlock on roads; crossing Tollbar Way; environmental impact, 
flood zone; and potential road traffic accidents; and (b) the Chairman read 
out a note from a resident of Watkin Road who was unable to attend the 
meeting who had concerns regarding: flood levels and dispersal of water if 
land was built on; houses lower than road; brook high flowing; uninsurable; 
loss of strategic gap; and that Hedge End had seen more than its fair 
share of building over that last forty years.) 
 

426. PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND NORTH AND EAST OF BOORLEY 
GREEN, BOTLEY, SOUTHAMPTON 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 7) concerning a Reserved Matters application 
for the spine road infrastructure, together with foul surface water drainage 
networks, landscaping and associated works. The application included the 
diversion of Footpath No.2 (Ref: R/15/77552). 
 
The Committee was advised that the recommendation had been amended 
to:  
 
(1) Subject to satisfactory receipt of amended plans or additional 

information in relation to: 

 street trees in central section of site;  

 typical construction details; 

 position of surface water retaining/conveying features; and 
 

(2) Satisfactory completion of consultations and finalisation of wording 
of conditions following completion of consultation that the decision 
be delegated to Head of Development Management, Chair and 
Vice-Chair of HEWEB Local Area Committee for approval of 
reserved matters. 

 
The Committee were also advised of the following:  

 
(a) Amended Plans had been received on 11 January 2016; 

 
(b) Consultation responses had been received from: 

 Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy – Two additional 
trees were required in the central area of site and the use of 
conservation kerbs to be shown on typical construction details. 

 Tree Officer – No objection to revised arboricultural report and 
realigning of haul road. 

 Ecology Officer – No objection subject to conditions and 
informatives. 

 Head of Transportation and Engineering – No objection 
subject to approval of SuDS design, maintenance and 

5



308 
 

 

management, and revisions to position of footway at Winchester 
Road access. 

 Southern Water  
- Would not accept the proposed drainage layout.  The proposals 
indicated that there were surface water retaining or conveying 
features (i.e. swales, ponds) crossing or within unacceptable 
distance to the proposed adoptable drainage and water 
apparatus.  No soakaways, swales, ponds, watercourses or any 
other surface water retaining or conveying features should be 
located within 5m of a public (also adoptable) sewers, water 
apparatus. 
- On-site drainage would be required to be subject to an 
adoption agreement under S104 of the Water Industry Act.  The 
protection measures for construction works of spine roads within 
the proximity of the existing public apparatus should be 
approved by Southern Water. 
- No habitable rooms should be located closer than 15m to 
boundary of a proposed pumping station site. 

 An additional letter had been received from Curdridge Parish 
Council who objected to the application as there was no 
reference to layout of access from Maddoxford Lane.  There 
was concern about junction priority at Maddoxford Lane shown 
at outline stage, which contradicted with Hampshire County 
Council (HCC) policy on Botley-Bishops Waltham Trail and the 
safe route for equestrians, cyclists and walkers along Wangfield 
Lane and Nether Hill.  They requested that HCC used s278 
powers to ensure southern access to the development was via 
the minor road at its junction with Maddoxford Lane. 

 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the decision be delegated to the Head of Development 
Management, Chair and Vice-Chair of Hedge End, West End and 
Botley Local Area Committee to PERMIT subject to: 
 
(1) The receipt of satisfactory amended plans or additional 

information in relation to: 

 street trees in central section of site  

 typical construction details 
 position of surface water retaining/conveying features 
 

(2) The satisfactory completion of consultations and finalisation of 
wording of conditions and reasons following completion of 
consultation; and 
 

(3) The following amended and new conditions and reasons, and 
additional informatives: 
 
Condition 1 – reworded to read as follows: 

6



309 
 

 

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in 
accordance with the following plans numbered: A073968-3 LA1-01 
rev F, A073968-3 LA1-02 rev F, B641/16, B641/17, B641/18, 
B641/19 rev B, B641/20 rev B, B641/21 rev B, B641/22 rev B, 
B641/23 rev D, B641/31, HP11068/1/FP, HP11068/plan1,   Sheet 1 
of 6 FA E-F1501.00 300 rev P1,  Sheet 6 of 6 FA E-F1501.00 300 
rev P1, Sheet 1 of 6 FA E-F1501.00 350 rev P1, Sheet 3 of 6 FA E-
F1501.00 350 rev P1,  Sheet 4 of 6 FA E-F1501.00 350 rev P1, 
Sheet 5 of 6 FA E-F1501.00 350 rev P1, Sheet 6 of 6 FA E-
F1501.00 350 rev P1. Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in 
the interests of proper planning. 
 
Oiginal Condition 2 – deleted, but need to comply with outline 
conditions added as an informative.  
 
Original Condition 3, new Condition 2  - reworded as follows: 
No development shall commence until details of the box culvert to 
be provided under the spine road in the central part of the site 
between Botley Golf Course Woods SINC and Botley Park Wood 
SINC have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Details shall include the exact location of the 
box culvert, the dimensions of it and the materials to be used in its 
construction.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. Reason: To enable ecological connectivity,  
mitigate against habitat fragmentation across the site and allow 
ground dwellings species to use the box culvert as an underpass. 
 
Original Condition 4 – deleted, as duplicates with condition 7 
 
Original Condition 5, new Condition 3 
No development shall commence until tree pit details have been 
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenities of the 
locality. 
 
Original Condition 6 – deleted as landscape strategy were now 
submitted as part of application and conditions on outline 
application required detailed proposals to be submitted. 
 
Original Condition 7, new Condition 4 – reworded to read as 
follows: 
No development shall commence or licence application be agreed 
until a dormice mitigation and management plan has been 
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
This must include an arboreal or other connection that enables 
dormice to safely move between Botley Golf Course Woods SINC 
and Botley Park Wood SINC. The development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details. Reason: To protect the 
dormouse population present on site. 

7



310 
 

 

 
Original Condition 8, new condition 5 – reworded to read as 
follows to refer to updated report: 
The development shall  be carried out in full accordance with 
Middlemarch Environmental's "Arboricultural Assessment of Impact 
and Method Statement (Infrastructure)", Report No: RT-MME-
121155-01rev A, dated January 2016.  No development shall 
commence until a site meeting has taken place with the site 
manager, the retained consulting arboriculturist and the Tree 
Services Manager from the Local Planning Authority.  Work cannot 
commence until the Tree Services Manager has inspected and 
approved the tree protection, ensuring it conforms to the approved 
Tree Protection Plan and the Method Statement. Reason: To retain 
and protect the existing trees which form an important part of the 
amenity of the locality. 
 
Condition 6 - New 
The proposed street trees and street lighting columns shall be 
provided in the positions shown on drawings A073968-e LA1-01 rev 
F and A073968-3 LA1-02 rev F, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Reason:  To ensure the provision of 
appropriately tree-lined streets through the development. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATIVES 
The development shall comply with the conditions imposed on 
the grant of the outline planning permission reference 
O/12/71514.    
 
In complying with condition 7 on the outline permission 
O/12/71514 please note that details of the lighting levels within 
or adjacent to the woodland edges will need to be submitted to 
ensure no adverse impact on these ecologically sensitive 
areas. 

 
(NOTES: (a) The Chair, and a member of Botley Parish Council spoke in 
objection to the application citing a number of issues including the 
following: Maddoxford Lane and Oatlands Road was not suitable for 
construction traffic and requested that this be conditioned; maintenance; 
Footpath 2 was a stream; should not be considered without surface water 
details and SUDs and requested that this also be conditioned; bus routes; 
badgers; flooding; drainage; and working together with the Council to 
address foul sewer drainage from the hotel; and (b) the agent for the 
applicant spoke in support.) 
 

427. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reported that the following 
appeal had been lodged:  
 

8



311 
 

 

F/15/76253 - Appeal against refusal of Construction of detached 4 
bedroom dwelling to incorporate alterations to ground levels and provision 
of associated retaining structures, following demolition of existing garage 
(revised design to F/14/75091) 78 Bursledon Road, Hedge End, 
Southampton, SO30 0BZ  
 
This was a Delegated decision 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

428. VARIOUS ON STREET PARKING RESTRICTIONS 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Transportation and 
Engineering (Agenda item 9) which listed new amendments to existing 
waiting restrictions which had been proposed in various locations across 
the Hedge End, West End and Botley area. During the advertisement of 
the proposed Traffic Regulation Order objections were received to the 
proposals in some locations. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(1) That restrictions in Beattie Rise as shown in drawing 

TM01/01525/1 be implemented; 
 

(2) That restrictions in Church Lane as shown in drawing 
TM01/01525/7 be deferred for a more comprehensive review;  

 
(3) That restrictions in Clifton Gardens as shown in drawing 

TM01/01525/10 be implemented;  
 
(4) That restrictions in Gammon Close as shown in drawing 

TM01/01525/2 be implemented; 
 

(5) That restrictions in Kings Copse Road as shown in drawing 
TM01/01525/9 be implemented;  
 

(6) That restrictions in Leatherhead Gardens as shown in drawing 
TM01/01525/5 be implemented;  
 

(7) a) That restrictions in Mallard Gardens as shown in drawing 
TM01/01525/11 be deferred for further information;  
 

b) That the inclusion of the junction of Mallard Gardens and 
Stanier Way in the ongoing monitoring for Hedge End Station 
Parking Restrictions scheme be deferred for further 
information;  
 

9



312 
 

 

(8) That restrictions in Pavilion Road as shown in drawing 
TM01/01525/12 be implemented; 
 

(9) That restrictions in Sovereign Drive as shown in drawing 
TM01/01525/14 be implemented; and  
 

(10) That restrictions listed in Table 1, which received no 
comments be implemented. 

 
(NOTES: (a) One member of the public spoke in objection to the Church 
Lane proposals citing that the damage was caused by through traffic and 
not residents parking which likened to traffic calming, and it was noted that 
the Chairman voted in support of the restrictions, (b) one member of the 
public spoke in objection to Mallard Gardens citing that there was no 
evidence that restrictions were required, (c) one member of the public 
spoke in support of Clifton Gardens, and (d) three members of the public 
spoke in support of Sovereign Drive.) 

 
429. AGEAS BOWL REVIEW APRIL - SEPTEMBER 2015 

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Area Co-ordinator in 
consultation with the Head of Transportation and Engineering Services, 
Head of Environmental Health and Customer Services Manager (Agenda 
item 10) which provided a summary of complaints and comments received 
by the Council in respect of cricket matches and large scale events held at 
the Ageas Bowl during the 2015 season. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(1) That the complaints, comments and recommendations for the 

Ageas Bowl during the 2015 season be noted;  and 
 

(2) That the successful expansion of community activities be 
noted. 

 
430. FUNDING FOR LOCAL PROJECTS 

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Area Co-ordinator in 
consultation with the Clerk of Hedge End Town Council and the Head of 
Sport and Active Lifestyles (Agenda item 11) which recommended funding 
to support local projects that would meet the identified local needs. The 
projects would also contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
(1) That the renewal of the existing service level agreement for 

another 12 months with funding of £5,500 for the services 
provided at the Teenage Drop-In Centre be approved; 

 

10



313 
 

 

(2) That funding of £2,000 for the Park Sport summer holiday 
activities programme in 2016 be approved; and 
 

(3) That the contribution of £100 towards the Think Safe initiative 
be approved. 

 
431. COMMUNITY GRANTS 2016/2017 

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Area Co-ordinator (Agenda 
item 12) on behalf of the Hedge End, West End and Botley Community 
Grants Panel which recommended that grants be allocated to local 
organisations operating in the local area for 2016/17. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That the grants as contained in Appendix 1 to this report be 
approved. 
 

432. EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
(1) That, in pursuance of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following item of business on the grounds that it was 
likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act; 
and 

 
(2) That, in pursuance of the public interest test, the public 

interest in disclosing the information contained in the 
following item of business was outweighed by the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption. 

 
433. LOCAL LISTING OF BUILDINGS 

 
Consideration was given to a report which identified three properties in the 
local area to be included in the Local List of Buildings of Special 
Architectural and Historic Interest. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the buildings listed in the report, being of special architectural 
and historic interest, be approved for addition to the existing list. 
 
M5442 
 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 7 March 2016 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY  
YOUTH COUNCIL FOR YOUTH GRANTS  

Report of the Area Co-ordinator in partnership with the Hedge End, 
West End and Botley Youth Council 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that this Committee: 

(1) Endorses the recommendations of the Hedge End, West End & Botley 
(HEWEB) Youth Council for HEWEB youth grants as shown in Appendix 1; 

(2) Extends its thanks to members of the Youth Grants Panel; 

(3) Allocates £4,000 to enable local youth grants to be awarded in 2017. 
 

Summary 
 
This report invites Members to endorse the recommendations of this year’s Youth Grants 
Panel and to extend their thanks to the volunteers who have participated in the decision 
making process.  £4,000 from the Committee’s Youth Initiatives budget should be reserved 
so that the Youth Grants Panel, with the support of Hedge End Town Council’s youth work 
staff can be reconvened in 2017. 

Statutory Powers 
 
s.1 Localism Act 2011.  Children’s Act 2004. 

 

Introduction 

1. The HEWEB Youth Council is supported by the Hedge End Town Council’s 
youth work team.  One of their roles is to consider the Hedge End, West End 
and Botley annual youth grant applications with the support of the youth team. 

Grants Process 2015/16 

2. Volunteers from the HEWEB Youth Council spent their free time preparing 
criteria, distributing grant application forms, interviewing applicants and 
prioritising awards so that their grant recommendations could be brought to 
this Committee for endorsement. 

13

Agenda Item 5



 

3. The recommendations of the Youth Grants Panel are shown in Appendix 1.  
Members are invited to ratify their recommendations.  The grants will be 
presented at the HEWEB Youth Partnership Annual General Meeting on 
Thursday 17 March. 

Financial Implications 

4. At last year’s local area committee meeting on 9 March 2015, £4,000 was ring 
fenced for this year’s grants from this Committee’s revenue budget. Appendix 
1 shows that the total amount awarded is £4,089. The additional £89 can be 
afforded from revenue.  

5. It is also recommended that £4,000 is allocated in the revenue budget 
2016/17 for youth grants. 

Risk Assessment 

6. The HEWEB Youth Council has introduced a robust assessment and 
monitoring process to ensure all grants are properly utilised in accordance 
with criteria and conditions.   

Equality and Diversity Implications 

7. The HEWEB Youth Council has made specific efforts to ensure that equality 
and diversity implications were taken into account throughout its deliberations.  
Grant decisions have been made taking into account the key guidance of 
‘Every Child Matters’ and the Children’s’ Act 2004. 

Conclusion 

8. Promoting ‘active citizenship’ through delegating real decisions to our young 
people continues to be a successful and welcome initiative.  The 
recommendations contained within this report complement corporate priorities 
and are part of this Hedge End, West End and Botley Youth Partnership 
development plan. 

JULIA BIRT    DONNA LOVE 
 Area Co-ordinator   Hedge End Town Council Youth team 
 Hedge End, West End & Botley   

 
Date:  9 February 2016 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
Report No: AC902JB 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

 
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the preparation of this 
report. This list does not include any published works or documents which would disclose exempt or 
confidential information. None 

14

mailto:julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk


       Appendix 1 
 

Applicant Amount 
Requested  

Purpose Recommendation Comments 

1. St Luke’s Church 
 

£479 Smart TV £479 See 
attached 

2. 1st HE Boys Brigade 
 

£500 Laptop to aid DOE Awards £500  

3. 25th Itchen North Scout Group 
HE 
 

£400 Camp/Bushcraft: Cooking equip, flints, saws, fire lighting. £200  

4. 31st Itchen North Scouts £500 Funds towards purchasing a ‘Canadian Canoe.’ £500  

5. Chimera Explorer Scouts 
 

£260 Two x Vango hike tents at £130 each £260  

6. The Dart Centre 
 

£500 Arts and Crafts school hols course: Volunteer training and 
DBS check. 

£100  

7. 10th Itchen North Scout Group 
 

£500 Icelandic Tent £500  

8. Wildern Young Carers 
 

£400 Young Carers Breakfast Club: 20 x meetings £200 and 2 x 
trips £200 

£400  

9. Tadic 
 

£500 Updated website £250  

10. Fledge Youth Support 
 

£500 Publicity Materials for project £250  

11. The Dart Centre 
 

£150 One day Arts and Crafts workshops: Materials. £150  

12. The Box 
 

£500 Funds towards late summer residential trip £500  

 

 

 

 

15



       Appendix 1 
 

COMMENTS FROM THE YOUTH COUNCIL (YC) 

 

1. St Luke’s Church – Smart TV/£479 

The YC felt St Luke’s should receive all of the monies requested for a smart tv as not all young people will have access to one at home and this could 

enable further enjoyment. They also felt it could be beneficial to the group and be used as a learning tool.  

Full amount awarded: £479 

 

2. 1st HE Boys Brigade – Laptop/£500 

The YC also felt that the Boys Brigade members especially those who could not access IT facilities at home, would greatly benefit from being able to 

use a laptop to aid their Duke of Edinburgh award.  

Full amount awarded: £500 

 

3. 25th Itchen North Scouts – Camping Equipment/£400 

The YC felt the scouts/beavers would benefit from additional camping equipment. Saws, flints/bushcraft and bowls, baking trays, spatulas and 

measuring jugs etc for camp were required. The YC advised that perhaps £400 was an excessive amount for this equipment and felt half the monies 

would suffice.  

Half amount awarded: £200 

 

4. 31st Itchen North – Canadian Canoe/£500 

The YC felt this was a worthy cause to increase the number of canoes that the sea scouts currently have from 3 to 4 as this will enable more young 

people to take part.  

The YC discussed the difference between a regular canoe and a Canadian canoe as they are expensive at approx. £900 each. After discussion the YC 

felt the full amount towards a second hand craft would be acceptable.  

Full amount awarded: £500 

 

5. Chimera Explorer Scouts – 2 x Vango Tents/£260 

The YC felt the tents were good value for money.  The YC also felt the application had been very thorough detailing the tent information etc. The 

tents would enable the members to complete Duke of Edinburgh awards. 

Full amount awarded: £260 

16



       Appendix 1 
 

6. The Dart Centre – Volunteer training and DBS check/£500 

The Dart Centre asked for a volunteer to be trained up to work school holidays on the variety of arts and crafts course. The trainee aged 16 would 

be paid £4 per hour. Perhaps recruit more volunteers? 

The YC felt there was not enough information about this eg, how many school holidays would the trainee work? They also felt that free ‘in house’ 

training could be offered. Also the cost of a standard DBS check is £26 and an enhanced DBS check is £44. 

The YC therefore decided to award an amount towards a DBS check and one day of staff time for training. 

Amount awarded: £100 

 

7. 10th Itchen North Scout Group – Icelandic Tent/£500 

The YC felt this would be a great addition for the scouts and enable them to enjoy summer camping activities. The YC discussed the difference 

between a regular tent and an Icelandic tent eg size! The YC also appreciated the detailing on the application including the picture of the proposed 

tent. 

Amount awarded: £500 

 

8. Wildern Young Carers – Breakfast club/£400 

The YC felt the breakfast club was extremely good for vulnerable young people in a caring situation. The young carers eligible have grown from 20 

to 50 young people at Wildern and the costs would cover 20 breakfast meetings (£200) and two subsidised trips for the young carers during the 

year. YC felt this was value for money and a worthwhile cause. 

Amount awarded: £400 

 

9. Tadic – Updated website/£500 

The YC had a long discussion about this and felt that perhaps £500 was excessive. Although all agreed Tadic to be an extremely well-used service for 

young people, they suggested perhaps using university IT students who may be able to further develop their existing site at no cost or cheaper than 

the proposed £800? Therefore YC recommended half the amount to be awarded. 

Amount awarded: £250 

 

10. Fledge Youth Support – Publicity materials/£500 

Fledge Youth Support is a new charity set up in Eastleigh to support homeless and vulnerable young people aged 16 to 24 years. 

17



       Appendix 1 
 

They currently support one young person in Botley but are hoping to increase these numbers to young people in HEWEB. The amount requested 

was for publicity materials e.g. leaflets and a video to promote their services locally.  

The YC felt this was a very worthy charity to support young people. Their only concern was at the moment, there is only one local HEWEB young 

person that they are actually supporting but hopefully this would increase. The decision was to award half the amount to kick start further publicity 

for the charity. 

Amount awarded: £250 

 

11. The Dart Centre – arts and crafts course/£150 

The Dart Centre wish to offer 3 courses of arts and crafts and cookery to young people aged 11 to 16. The monies requested would pay for initial 

materials after which the group would be self-funding. 

The YC felt this was value for money and would be happy to assist in the set-up of the courses for young people. 

Amount awarded: £150 

 

12. The Box Youth Centre – summer residential/£500 

The Box staff would like to take the Friday Night Project group on a summer residential to Avon Tyrrell activity centre in the New Forest. Young 

people who attend the Box were asked whether they would like us to apply for a piece of equipment or monies towards a trip. The young people 

felt a trip would be very rewarding and would increase their social skills and experiences. The YC felt this would be beneficial for the young people 

who attend the Friday Night Project. The cost of the trip including full board, lodgings and activities for 16 young people and 4 support staff is 

£2,550. The project will be seeking a bursary from UK Youth also to enable this trip to happen. 

Amount awarded: £500 

 

Total amounts awarded: £4089.00 

18



07/03/2016 
 
APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR DECISION 
 
HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY Monday 07 March 2016 Case Officer Andy Grandfield 

 
 
SITE: Land at Hatch Farm, North of Barbe Baker Avenue, West 

End, Southampton, Hampshire,  
 
Ref. F/15/77718 Received: 14/12/2015     (14/03/2016) 
 
 
APPLICANT: Radian 

 
PROPOSAL: Construction of 98no. dwellings with access from Barbe 

Baker Avenue and Barnsland, associated landscaping, 
parking, new footpath, children’s play area, attenuation 
pond and diversion of 3no. public rights of way. 

  
AMENDMENTS: None 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Subject to: 
(i) receipt of amended plans to include minor revisions to elevations, footpath 
links and layout;  
(ii) submission of further drainage information, water quality protection 
measures and 2012/13 ecology reports;  
(iii) a s106 agreement to secure improvements to Public Open Space, highway 
improvements, sustainable transport, community infrastructure and affordable 
housing; and  
(iv) consideration of any further consultee responses - 
 
PERMIT 
 

 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1) The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 

following plans numbered:  1011-PD-110 Rev G, 1011-PD-111 Rev G, 1011-PD-
112 Rev G, 1011-PD-300  Rev A, 1011-PD-301  Rev A, 1011-PD-302  Rev A, 
1011-PD-303  Rev A, 1011-PD-400, 1011-PD-401, 1011-PD-402, 1011-PD-230, 
1011-PD-228 Rev A, 1011-PD-229, 1011-PD-113 Rev H, 1011-PD-350 Rev A, 
1011-PD-224 Rev A, 1011-PD-222 Rev A, 1011-PD-212 Rev A, 1011-PD-220 
Rev B, 1011-PD-209 Rev A, 1011-PD-200 Rev B, 1011-PD-201 Rev A, 1011-
PD-202 Rev A, 1011-PD-203 Rev A, 1011-PD-204 Rev A, 1011-PD-226 Rev A , 

19

Agenda Item 9



1011-PD-225 Rev A, 1011-PD-227 Rev A, 1011-PD-205 Rev B , 1011-PD-206 
Rev A, 1011-PD-229, 1011-PD-207 Rev A,  1011-PD-208 Rev A, 1011-PD-200 
Rev A,  1011-PD-211 Rev A,  1011-PD-213 Rev A, 1011-PD-214 Rev A,  1011-
PD-215 Rev A, 1011-PD-217 Rev A, 1011-PD-218 Rev B,  1011-PD-219 Rev A,  
1011-PD-223 Rev A, 1011-PD-221 Rev A, 1011-PD-100.  Reason: For the 
avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  
(2) The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of two years 

beginning with the date on which this permission is granted. Reason: To comply 
with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

  
(3) Plans and particulars showing the proposals for all the following aspects of the 

development must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority before  the development is commenced. The development 
must then accord with these approved details for that phase. Reason:  In order 
that these matters may be considered by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
a: The provision to be made for street lighting and/or external lighting and bat 

sensitive lighting  
b: Details of rainwater goods. 
c: Details and location of meter boxes. 
d: Colour and materials for fascias and soffits. 
e: Balcony details. 
f:  Proposed ground levels and relationship to existing levels both within the site 

and on immediately adjoining land. 
h: Boundary wall design. 
i: The levels above ordnance datum of all ground floor levels of buildings, 

gardens and tops of retaining walls 
j: The provision of street trees. 
k: Window details and designs. 

  
(4) Details and samples of all external facing and roofing materials, rainwater pipes, 

doors and widnows must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority before each phase of development commences. The 
development of that phase must then accord with these approved details. 
Reason:  To ensure that the external appearance of any building is satisfactory. 

  
(5) Final detailed proposals for the disposal of foul and surface water shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the 
commencement of the development hereby permitted. Details shall show the 
water will be filtered to exclude contaminants that may have a detrimental impact 
upon water quality. The approved details shall be fully implemented before the 
buildings hereby approved are occupied.  Reason: To ensure satisfactory 
provision of foul and surface water drainage. 

  
(6) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a plan for the 

management, responsibility and maintenance of the sustainable urban drainage 
(SUDs) features shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The management plan shall ensure no part of the SUDs 
features are located within land that forms part of the curtilage of residential 

20



properties. The development must accord with these approved details. Reason: 
To ensure long terms management of the surface water drainage features. 

  
(7) No construction or demolition work shall start until a Construction Management 

Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. Demolition and construction work shall only take place in accordance 
with the approved Construction Management Plan which shall include:   
a) a programme and phasing of the demolition and construction work, including 
roads, landscaping and open space;   
b) location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction material and 
plant storage areas used during demolition and construction;    
c) the arrangements for the routing/ turning of lorries and details for construction 
traffic access to the site;   
d) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works, 
loading/ unloading of plant & materials and  restoration of any damage to the 
highway [including vehicle crossovers and grass verges]. 
e) provision for storage, collection, and disposal of rubbish from the 
development during construction period;   
f) measures to prevent mud on the highway during demolition and construction.  
g) Measures to prevent dust nuisance in accordance with Best Practise 
Guidance - The Control of Dust and Emissions from Construction and 
Demolition, 2006 (London Authorities) and Guidance on the Assessment of Dust 
from Demolition and Construction, 2014 (Institute of Air Quality Management); 
h) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;    
i) temporary lighting;   
j) measures to control noise, vibration and dust impacts for neighbours; 
k) no burning of materials from site clearance or development shall take place 
within or adjoining the site. 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the locality 
  

(8) Before any work commences on site a Construction Environment Management 
Plan will be submitted to and agreed by Eastleigh Borough Council incorporating 
safeguards to preserve the water quality and flows leaving the site. Particular 
attention should be paid to safeguards to ensure pollutants found on site and silt 
disturbed remains within the confines of the site. Reason: To ensure no impact 
on the River Itchen SAC due to contamination and changes in flow. 

  
(9) Development shall not begin until the developer has provided a noise 

assessment scheme that demonstrates that the impacts of noise from road 
traffic noise affecting the site have been considered. The report shall include a 
scheme of mitigation measures for protecting the development from noise and 
vibration, this scheme must be submitted for approval by the Local Planning 
Authority. All works, which form part of the scheme approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, must be completed before any of the permitted dwellings are 
occupied (unless agreed by the Local Planning Authority) The scheme shall be 
fully implemented, unless varied with the written permission of the Local 
Planning Authority in advance of implementation.Reason: In the interest of 
protecting residential amenity 

  

21



(10) Development shall not begin until the developer has carried out a noise and 
vibration assessment which takes into account the impact of site preparation and 
construction works on existing and proposed noise sensitive properties, and a 
report of its findings has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority (LPA). The report shall include a scheme of mitigation 
measures for protecting from noise and vibration. The approved scheme shall be 
fully implemented. Reason: In the interest of protecting residential amenity 

  
(11) Where acceptable internal noise levels cannot be met with open windows, 

alternative ventilation, (rapid ventilation or whole house ventilation to ensure 
temperature control), will be required.  A detailed ventilation scheme taking into 
account the above must be submitted for approval by the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA). All works, which form part of the scheme approved by the LPA, 
must be completed before any of the permitted dwellings are occupied (unless 
agreed by the LPA). The scheme must be fully implemented, unless varied with 
written permission of the LPA in advance of implementation. Reason:In the 
interest of protecting residential amenity 

  
(12) No work shall commence on site until the following has been submitted to, and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: (a) A report of a site 
investigation documenting the ground conditions of the site and incorporating 
chemical and gas analysis identified as appropriate by the Preliminary 
Investigation in accordance with BS10175:2011+A1 2013 and BS8576:2013, 
and, unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning Authority; (b) A detailed 
site specific scheme for remedial works and measures to be undertaken to avoid 
the risk from contaminants and/or gases when the site is developed and 
proposals for future maintenance a and monitoring. Such a scheme shall include 
nomination of a competent person to oversee the implementation of the works. 
Reason: 

  
(13) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied/brought into use until 

there has been submitted to the local planning authority verification by the 
competent person approved under the provisions of the above condition 12(b) 
that any remediation scheme required and approved under the provisions of the 
above condition 12(b) has been implemented in full in accordance with the 
approved details (unless varied with the written permission of the local planning 
authority in advance of implementation). Unless agreed in writing with the local 
planning authority such verification shall comply with the guidance contained in 
CLR11 and EA guidance for the safe development of housing on land affected 
by contamination - R&D Publication 66:2008. Typically such a report would 
comprise:- 
(a) A description of the site and its background, and summary of relevant site 

information 
(b) A description of the remediation objectives and redial works carried out 
(c) Verification data including - sample locations/ analytical results, as built 

drawings of the implemented scheme, photographs of the remediation works 
in progress, etc. 

(d) Certificates demonstrating that imported and /or material left in situ is free 
from contamination. 

22



Thereafter the scheme shall be monitored and maintained in accordance with 
the approved scheme under condition 12(b). Reason: In the interest of 
residential amenity 

  
(14) Prior to the commencement of development a bat activity survey covering April, 

May and June will be submitted to and agreed by the Local Authority. Impact on 
further bat foraging corridors identified within the survey should be protected 
with details of mitigation provided and agreed with Eastleigh Borough Council. 
Reason: To protect bat foraging corridors within the site 

  
(15) Prior to the commencement of development a bat mitigation strategy will be 

prepared detailing additional roost locations, and a lighting strategy to conserve 
dark corridors conforming to foraging/commuting corridors identified within the 
surveys. Reason: To ensure the impact of the development on bat species is 
fully mitigated and the site is enhanced 

  
(16) Prior to the commencement of development a reptile survey carried out within 

the appropriate period April –June or September and a Reptile Mitigation 
Management and Monitoring Plan will be submitted to and agreed by the Local 
Authority. Reason: To protect reptile populations within the site 

  
(17) Prior to commencement, details of how the approved dwellings will achieve 

Code level 4 equivalent requirements for energy efficiency and water 
consumption (or equivalent requirements that are set out in national legislation 
or policy), with reference to design stage SAP data and the BRE water 
calculator,  as well as evidence that the relevant ESD requirements 2-8 inclusive 
of the Council’s adopted Environmentally Sustainable Development SPD are 
being met shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until written confirmation that these 
works have been completed, and the ‘as built’ stage SAP data and a 
confirmation of the water calculation, has been submitted for that dwelling.  
Reason: To ensure the development meets the requirements of the national 
technical standards for energy and water consumption and the Council’s 
adopted Environmentally Sustainable Development SPD in residential 
development. 

  
(18) Prior to the commencement of development a scheme of work detailing the 

extent and type of piling proposed within that phase has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Each phase of development 
shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: To protect the amenity of occupiers of adjoining residential properties 

  
(19) Prior to the commencement of development details of the type of construction 

proposed for the roads and footways within each phase of development 
including all relevant horizontal cross sections and longitudinal sections showing 
the existing and proposed levels together with details of street lighting and the 
method of disposing of surface water and details of the programme of 
implementation for the making up of the roads and footways must be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before development 
of that phase commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 

23



than in accordance with the approved details. Reason: To ensure that the roads 
are constructed to a standard which will enable them to be taken over as publicly 
maintainable highways. 

  
(20) Prior to the commencement of development, details of all crime prevention 

measures associated with the dwellings and public open space must be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Reason. In 
the interest of crime prevention. 

  
(21) The roads and footways must be laid out and made up in accordance with the 

specification, programme and details approved and in any event shall be so 
constructed that, by no later than the time any building erected on the land is 
occupied, there shall be a direct connection from it to an existing highway. The 
final carriageway and footway surfacing must be completed within six months 
from the date upon which the erection is commenced of the penultimate dwelling 
or building within the phase for which permission is hereby permitted. Reason:  
To ensure that the roads are constructed to a standard which will enable them to 
be taken over as publicly maintainable highways. 

  
(22) Prior to the commencement of development, the applicant shall secure the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological evaluation and mitigation in 
accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation that has been submitted to 
and approved by the Planning Authority. Reason: To assess the extent, nature 
and date of any archaeological deposits that might be present and mitigate the 
impact of the development upon these heritage assets. 

  
(23) Following completion of archaeological fieldwork a report will be produced in 

accordance with an approved programme including where appropriate post-
excavation assessment, specialist analysis and reports, publication and public 
engagement. Reason: To contribute to our knowledge and understanding of our 
past by ensuring that opportunities are taken to capture evidence from the 
historic environment and to make this publicly available. 

  
(24) Prior to the commencement of development a management and maintenance 

plan for the footpaths, carriageways and public areas shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. For areas not to be adopted, 
the management plan shall include details of methods of ensuring allocated 
parking areas are reserved for the use by occupiers of the property to which it is 
allocated. The development must accord with these approved details. Reason: 
In the interest of highway safety 

  
(25) Prior to the commencement of development full details of the cycle storage 

systems shown on the approved plans must be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and the approved works shall be 
provided before first occupation of the dwellings to which the associated storage 
relates.  Reason: To ensure cycle storage is available in the interests of properly 
planned development. 

  
(26) Prior to the commencement of development, details of a technology and 

communication strategy for the provision of broadband, fibre optic and audio 

24



visual technology within the development  must be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The infrastructure must then be provided 
for use upon first occupation of the buildings hereby permitted and retained 
thereafter. Reason: To improve the opportunities to work from home and to 
reduce the proliferation of individual masts, aerials, satellite dishes and wiring on 
flatted and commercial blocks in the interests of visual amenity. 

  
(27) No development shall start until a landscaping scheme has been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall cover 
all hard & soft landscaping [including trees, tree pits and boundary treatment] 
and shall provide details of timings for all landscaping and any future 
maintenance. The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
plans and to the appropriate British Standard.   Reason: In the interests of the 
visual amenity of the locality and to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring 
residents. 

  
(28) No development shall commence until a site meeting has taken place with the 

site manager, the retained consulting arboriculturalist and a representative from 
the Local Planning Authority. Work cannot commence until the LPA officer has 
inspected and approved the tree protection fencing and ground protection.  
Once approved no access by vehicles or placement of goods, chemicals, fuels, 
soil or other materials shall take place within the fenced area. The fencing shall 
be retained in its approved form for the duration of the work. All other aspects of 
the Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Method Statement will be 
addressed at this meeting.  Reason:  To protect trees 

  
(29) No construction or demolition work must take place except between the hours of 

08:00 to 18:00 Mondays to Fridays or 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and not at all 
on Sundays or Bank Holidays.: Reason: Residential amenity 

  
(30) The development must accord with the Arboricultural Impact Assessment (RT-

MME-118330 Rev B)  produced by Middlemarch Environmental Ltd. for Radian 
dated December 2015. . Reason: To protect trees on the boundary of the site. 

  
(31) The approved landscape scheme must be completed within 12 months from the 

completion of the last building shell in each phase, or by such later date as the 
Local Planning Authority may determine.  Any trees or plants which die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased during the first five years 
must be replaced during the next planting season with others of similar size and 
species unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 
variation. Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is 
satisfactory. 

  
(32) The garages shall not be converted to living accommodation without the prior 

written permission of the Local Planning Authority. Reason: In order to provide 
adequate on-site car parking. 

  
(33) Each dwelling hereby permitted must not be occupied until the area shown on 

the approved plan for the parking of vehicles shall have been made available, 
surfaced and marked out, and the areas must be retained in perpetuity for those 

25



dwellings to which each parking bay is allocated. Any unallocated parking area 
within the development must  be retained as such in perpetuity and in a 
condition to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority, and reserved for 
those purposes at all times. Reason: In the interests of highway safety/amenity. 

  
(34) Prior to commencement of development an Arboricultural Method Statement 

and Tree Protection Plan are to be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
LPA. The approved Arboricultural Method Statement must be adhered to in full, 
and may only be modified subject to written agreement from the LPA. Reason: 
To protect the health and vitality of trees on and adjoining the site. 

  
NOTE TO APPLICANT - This permission is also subject to a legal agreement. 

 
In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach to the 
handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a 
positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner 

 
 
 
Report: 
 
 
This application has been referred to the Hedge End, West End and Botley Local 
Area Committee for determining as it is contrary to the Development Plan and the 
site falls within the ownership of the Borough Council. 
 

Introduction 
 
1. This is a full (detailed) planning application which seeks approval for 98 

dwellings (1 to 4 bed) with associated landscaping, open space, car parking 
and access from Barbe Baker Avenue and Barnsland.  The proposal includes 
the stopping up and diversion of three public footpaths which is being 
progressed as part of a separate consenting process. 

 
2. The proposed housing would comprise a mix of two-storey detached, semi-

detached and terraced housing, bungalows and a small number of 
apartments. The development would deliver 15no. one and two bed 
bungalows, 14no, two bed  houses, 52no. three bed houses, 13no. four bed 
houses and 4no. one bed apartments. A 35% provision of dwellings across a 
range of styles and size would be provided for affordable housing (35no. 
units), pepper-potted around the development. Of the remaining units, 22.no 
would be private market rented properties and the remaining 41no. properties 
for market sale.  

 
3. The application has been submitted following the adoption of the “Land at 

Hatch Farm” Development Brief in 2012, which underwent extensive 
consultation and publicity. The site is allocated for housing development within 
the Submitted but not adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2011 - 2029) 

 

26



4. The application plans comprise the red line application plan showing the site 
boundary of the 16.1 ha site, detailed layout, landscaping strategy and access 
plans, full elevations, cycle / bin strategy and streetscenes.  

 

5. The main housing design principles of this development are;  
 

 Design focused around the main spine road 

 Perimeter block principles with houses located to face onto the residential 
streets or open space.  

 Tree lined streets, woodland planting and an orchard.  

 A `contemporary approach to design with the majority being two storey 
dwellings but some bungalows. 

 Character areas defined by the type of dwelling, materials and landscaping 

 A network of pedestrian paths through and around the site.   

 Enhancements to the public open space, including the provision of an 
attenuation pond and the provision of an equipped area of children’s plan 
and opportunity to deliver a skate park.  

 
6. The application is also accompanied by the following reports and technical 

assessments:-  
 

 Design and Access Statement 

 Planning Statement 

 Transport Assessment 

 Travel Plan 

 Landscape Design Statement 

 Arboriculture Impact Assessment & Tree Survey 

 Energy and Sustainability Statement 

 Flood Risk Assessment including Drainage Strategy 

 Ecological Assessment 

 Land Contamination Statement 

 Noise Statement 

 Materials schedule 

 Accommodation schedule.  
 
7. The proposal exceeds the updated thresholds for urban development projects 

set out with the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) (England) Regulations 2011 (amended). Having had regard to 
the scale of residential development and its impact the Council, through the 
screening process has concluded the development does not require an 
Environmental Statement to be submitted.  

 
8. Screening has been undertaken to establish whether a Habitats Regulations 

Assessment is required and concludes that further information on drainage is 
required before the Council can be satisfied that with appropriate mitigation 
and conditions, there would not be any significant likely impacts on any 
European Designated sites which would occur as a result of the development. 
This information has been sought and members will be updated verbally at 
committee.  

27



 

The application site and surroundings  
 

9. The application site is designated as existing public open space and outside of 
the urban edge within the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001-2011).  
In the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2011 – 2029) the site is 
designated as WE2 an allocated housing site “Land at Hatch Farm, north of 
Barbe Baker Avenue”.  

 
10. The site comprises open and sloping grassland used as informal open space 

and formally as grazing. Large parts of the site slope steeply rising to the high 
point of the site in the centre of the southern half of the site, which is some 
25m higher than the northwest corner. Public rights of way pass along the 
periphery exiting through gates along the southern, western and eastern 
boundaries. There is currently no vehicular access. The majority of the trees 
and hedgerows are located along the boundaries of the site, although there 
are the remnants of an old field hedge dividing the site on an east/west axis.  

 
11. The site is bounded by existing housing plots in Hickory Gardens and 

Redwood Close to the West and extends to the backs of housing in Barnsland 
and Charmwen Crescent to the East. Dummer’s Copse, a Site of Importance 
for Nature Conservation (SINC), provides a woodland buffer with the M27 to 
the north of the site. Barnsland public recreation ground is located to the 
north-west whilst to the south-east is the Hatch Grange Recreational Ground.  

 

Planning History 
 

12. The site formed part of the open space transferred to the Council as part of 
the adjoining housing in the late 1980s, with subsequent reserved matters 
applications for the dwellings submitted thereafter. 

 

 Z/29910/004 – Outline approval for residential development, open space, 
cemetery, landscaping, acoustic mounds, distributor road and associated 
facilities. Approved 1988 

 Z/29910/009 – Reserved matters approved for 64 dwellings and roads 
(Hickory Gardens) Approved 1989 

 Z/29910/019 – Reserved Matters for 48 dwellings (Hickory Gardens) 
Approved 1990 

 Z/29910/010 – Reserved Matters for landscaping. Approved 1989 

 Z/29910/024 – Relief of condition 2 of Z/29910/004. Approved 1992 
 

Consultation Responses 
 
13. Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy – no objection in principle 
 
14. Policy – As the development would result in the loss of public open space and 

is outside of the urban edge, the proposal is contrary to the Development Plan 
(adopted policies 1.CO and 145.OS). However, there are sufficient material 
considerations to support this development in line with the NPPF. The housing 
policies of the adopted Local Plan are out of date and this site was allocated 

28



for development (WE2) in the unadopted 2011 – 2029 Local Plan. This was 
supported by a substantial evidence base, including sustainability appraisal, 
transport assessment and habitat regulation assessment. These studies 
appraised the in-combination impact of the development proposed in the Local 
Plan and sought to demonstrate that the Local Plan proposals were sound and 
provided for sustainable development. The Council currently have not got a 5 
year housing land supply, therefore the development of this site would make a 
positive contribution towards meeting this. The PPG17 Open Space Study 
which assesses all formal and informal open space and sports and recreation 
facilities in the borough was undertaken in 2009 and updated in 2011. 
Appendix 7 of the PPG17 study sets out surplus and deficits by typology 
shows there is a significant surplus of amenity open space in West End parish 
at present. The Hatch Farm site was not included within this evidence base 
due to its use as a site for grazing. Although 4.5ha of this informal open space 
would be lost to residential development the remaining 11.6 hectares of open 
space will be retained and enhanced as Public Open Space. On balance, no 
objection is therefore raised.  

 
15. Sustainability – no objection subject to conditions.  
 
16. Landscape & Design – Generally support contemporary style but some 

revision sought to the balance of certain elevations, the size of some windows 
and the use of brick detailing. Concern about relative mass of units 41-44 and 
40 - 41. Large flatted building appears uncomfortable adjacent to proposed 
bungalows, whilst more front boundary treatment details are sought. Minor 
revisions to landscaping, some gardens and parking areas are also sought.  

 

17. Public Art – No objection subject to securing a Public Art Statement setting 
out details of the delivery of public artwork(s) on an elevated part of the Open 
Space. 

 

18. Head of Transportation and Engineering – No objection. The modelling of 
traffic within the Transports Statement (TS) for the proposed development’s 
impact on the High Street / Barbe Baker Avenue junction has been amended 
and is acceptable. Further discussions and site visits at peak journey time 
have been held regarding the modelling of Barnsland / Swaythling Road 
junction in the light of the perceived and existing impact suggested by 
residents. The TS is considered to be robust in its assessment of existing and 
future impacts; with no improvements needing to be secured to this junction. 
The option of a roundabout is not necessary or something that officers wish to 
promote. Revised plans have addressed car parking spaces and bin collection 
issues previously raised. The highway is relatively narrow at 4.4m but it does 
comply with the Manual for Streets standards for HGV and cars passing. 
However, to avoid the potential for obstructions due to inconsiderate parking 
funding of a traffic regulation order should be secured along with contributions 
to mitigate the of the development on the local highway.   

 
19. Head of Housing and Environmental Health – No objection. 
 

29



20. Contaminated land – No objection. The contaminated land desk study has 
identified potential sources of contamination, established likely pollutant 
linkages, and makes recommendations for further intrusive investigations. 
Based on this a site investigation will be required to be submitted prior to 
works commencing on site. Conditions recommended.  

 

21. Noise – No objection. Additional information has been provided to addressing 
previous concerns about noise impact from the M27 and night-time noise 
levels. It has been demonstrated that both internal and external noise 
standards can be achieved with some form of noise mitigation, which is to be 
agreed at the detailed design stage. The initial noise assessment had already 
established that traffic movements associated with the proposed development 
would not have a significant impact on existing residential properties. 
Conditions recommended mitigating construction impact, agreeing final noise 
attenuation measures and alternative ventilation measures.  

 

22. Tree officer – No objection subject to conditions..  
 

23. Biodiversity Officer – No objection in principle. The stream to the west is 
buffered with significant green space however construction of paths and the 
attenuation pond will need to be carefully considered to ensure water quality 
and flow is not undermined. The drainage strategy proposes a SUDs system 
but based on the information provided to date concerns are raised the system 
would be over-engineered, have insufficient natural filtration and has not 
sufficiently demonstrated water quality of Townhil Stream and the River Itchen 
would be protected. Further information is therefore sought. The 2012/2013 
protected species surveys are to be submitted; however no objection is raised 
to the impact on bats, dormice or reptiles subject to conditions. The 
landscaping should retain the acid grassland and concerns are raised about 
the use of cultivars (edible edge to the woodland) to avoid seeding within the 
woodland buffer. Conditions recommended; construction environmental 
management plan, bat activity surveys, bat mitigation strategy and reptile 
mitigation plan and contributions towards mitigation of recreational pressure 
on the Solent Complex.   

 
24. Parks & Opens Space Manager – No objection to the principle. The play 

area will need to be levelled, well drained and located 30m from the nearest 
dwelling. The skate park is welcomed as there is not a similar facility within 
West End. This will need to be levelled, drained and emergency vehicle 
access provided if possible. Contributions required for both facilities and to the 
management and maintenance of the wider Public Open Space land including 
the provision of litter / dog waste bins and benches.  

 

25. Head of Housing Services – No objection. Based on the current overall mix 
of housing proposed, the 35 units of affordable housing (35%) identified are 
acceptable to us in terms of mix, tenure and location. The occupational health 
therapist has suggested the wheelchair unit (plot 82) appears not to a have a 
kitchen that is accessible by wheelchair. All affordable units are to be 
constructed to Lifetime Home Standards.  

 

30



26. Head of Direct Services – Appropriate turning heads will need to be provided 
to eliminate the need for vehicles to reverse up to, in some cases, 65 m.  
(SPD states a maximum of 10 m).  Alternatively refuse collection points could 
be created.  
 

27. Head of Economic Development – An Employment and Skills plan for this 
development is required.  

 
28. HCC Highways – Under the agency agreement this application is to be 

considered by the Borough Council’s Head of Transportation and Engineering.  
 
29. HCC Access Officer (Rights of Way) – No comments received .To be 

updated verbally at committee.  
 
30. HCC Archaeologist – No objection in principle. While there is no indication 

that archaeology presents an overriding concern it is advised that the 
assessment, recording and reporting of any archaeological deposits affected 
by the development be secured through the attachment of suitable conditions 
to any planning consent that might be granted. 

 

31. HCC Children’s Service Department – The above planning application sits 
in the catchment area of Saint James Primary School, West End, which we 
anticipate expanding to mitigate the impact of this development. HCC 
Children’s Services seek a contribution towards a £4.7m project which will 
create 210 places or 1FE. Funding is sought towards the secondary education 
based on the provision of a new secondary school rather than an expansion of 
an existing school. 

 

32. HCC Lead Local Flood Authority – No objection subject to conditions 
requiring approval of final drainage details.  

 

33. Eastleigh Ramblers – Although not offering an opinion of the suitability of the 
site for residential development the application does contain suitable 
proposals for the diversion of public footpaths 11b, 501 and 502 West End. 
The remaining undeveloped areas within the site should remain undeveloped 
in perpetuity. Provision is needed to ensure that surface water run off does not 
scour the ditch and undermine the footbridge and that measures are secured 
to prevent pipes under the footbridge being blocked.  

 
34. Crime Prevention Advisor – No comments provided  

 

35. Natural England – No objection subject to securing a construction 
environmental management plan and full details of the drainage via condition.  

 
36. Environment Agency – No comments received.  
 

37. Southern Water – No objection. The exact position of the water mains and 
foul / surface water sewers must be determined on site. A water easement is 
within the site and should be investigated and apparatus protected. Foul 
sewage disposal can be provided subject to Southern Water’s approval. 

31



Council officers are to provide comment on the adequacy of the surface water 
drainage arrangements. Conditions recommended 

 
38. NHS West Clinical Commissioning Group – No objection subject to 

contributions towards improving local health care facilities.  
 

39. Southampton Airport – No objection.  
 
40. West End PC – no objection to this application subject to the drainage and 

highways issues which were discussed at the meeting  
 
41. Scottish & Southern Electric – No comments received. 
 

42. Southern Gas Network – No comments received.  
 

43. Esso Pipeline – No comment  
 

44. Fisher German (Government Pipeline Agency) – No comment to make 
 
 

Third Party Comments  
 
45. To date 41 objections have been received and summarised below;  
 

Principle 

 Loss of open space 

 Increased numbers of dwellings results in over development.  

 Loss of woodland and ecological habitat 

 Development should be on brownfield sites 

 Former farmland could be contaminated and not suited to development.  

 Brownfield sites would be better suited and more sustainable for housing  
 

Highways 

 Avoid access on to Barbe Baker Avenue 

 Barbe Baker Avenue is obstructed by parked cars 

 Double yellow lines (TRO) required along Barnsland.  

 Inadequate highway capacity 

 Dangerous having a junction close to Sharon Road which has poor 
visibility already.  

 Inadequate junction of Barbe Baker Avenue (BBA) and High Street, and 
no improvements to this junction to discourage rat running through other 
roads 

 Insufficient junctions have been assessed (BBA/Quob Lane; BBA/Sharon 
Road, Sharon Road/Charmwen Crescent, Sharon Road/Barnsland, 
Barnsland/A27)  

 Roundabout preferred at Barnsland/A27 Swaythling Road junction 

 Traffic surveys inadequate – should be for a 24 period, monitored over two 
weeks. Peak times are unrealistic.  

 Traffic light changes will be ineffective – new roundabout required.  

32



 Loss of on-road car parking  

 Clarification of number of access roads in to the development 

 New road should be provided for construction traffic from A27 to The Drive 
along the footway to avoid Barnsland. 

 Loss of informal off-highway parking   in garage court off Barnsland.  

 Inadequate parking capacity at local Tesco shop 

 Travel Plan inadequate and base line data insufficient.  
 

Infrastructure 

 Inadequate drainage proposals; ineffective attenuation pond (wet ground 
currently), lack of soil tests, risk over overflow in to gardens and Barnsland 
Rec, inconsistency with FRA, 1400% increase in run-off from the site, 
insufficient controls on surface water run-off, no evidence of mitigation if the 
hydro brake, attenuation pond or ditches fail, overall no assessment of 
drainage impact on existing dwellings 

 Lack of management of ditch system at present 

 Extensive existing flooding of gardens in Hickory Gardens and Barnsland 

 No capacity within local schools. 

 Health facilities oversubscribed. 

 Tesco is scheduled to close and Asda cannot cope with demand 
 

Ecology 

 Loss of woodland and ecological habitat 

 Impact on protect species – bGRANDers, bats 

 Impact on non-protected species – Tawny owls 

 Assurances that further surveys are undertaken and vegetation clearance is 
undertaken at the correct time of year.  

 Loss of trees will reduce sites ability to absorb pollutants/carbon dioxide and 
production of oxygen.  

 
Layout 

 Out of character –density, elevational treatment and materials 

 Scale – excessively large compared to surrounding bungalows. 

 Loss of trees to deliver new roads 

 Proposed trees are inappropriate 

 Too close to boundary with properties in Charmwen Crescent  

 The “hillock” could become an area for youths to congregate.  

 Management of boundaries needed. 
 

33



Amenity 

 Overlooking   

 Loss of privacy – from dwellings and public footpath/right of way 

 Previously private boundaries/gardens will be overlooked.  

 Noise information insufficient to meet the concerns of the Head of Housing 
and Environmental Health.  

 Air pollution from traffic.  
 

Other matters 

 My Eastleigh notification of planning applications is misleading 

 Late notification of application 

 Inadequate notification of application – notification delayed and not all 
properties affected individually notified 

 Insufficient time to comment on the application.  

 Extending the deadline for comments is confusing and deliberately misleading 
for residents. 

 Neighbour comments have not been published on line 

 Impact on property values 

 Disturbance (noise/dust) from construction traffic and works 

 Damage to highway from construction traffic. 

 Decrease in property values.  

 Conflict of interest as land owned by the Borough Council.  

 S106 contributions should be sought to improve Barnsland Recreation 
Ground, A temporary construction access from the existing footpath in The 
Drive, to the A27, a roundabout at Barbe Baker Avenue/High St junction and 
Barnsland/B3035, improvements to roundabout at Allington Lane 

 Covenants should be added to protected Barns Land Rec, Dummer’s Copse 
Woodland and the proposed orchard.  

 
Policy Context:  

   
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 (“saved policies”)  

 
46. This site is countryside within the current adopted Local Plan 2001-2011.  The 

most relevant saved policies are as follows:-  
 

 1.CO – countryside protection  

 18.CO – landscape character 

 20.CO – landscape improvements 

 25.NC- Promotion of biodiversity  

 30.ES – Refusal  where exposed to unacceptable levels of noise 

 31.ES – Appropriate design, layout and sound insulation . 

 32.ES – Refuse if air, ground or water pollution cannot be mitigated.   

 34.ES – Reduction in carbon dioxide and greenhouse gases 

 35.ES – Requires sufficient information to demonstrate that contaminated 
land can be appropriately remediated for the use proposed and that the 
risk of pollution to controlled waters is minimised 

a. 37.ES – Water consumption.  

34



b. 45.ES – Requires sustainable drainage systems 
c. 59.BE requires high standards of good design in new developments, 

including taking full and proper account of the context of the site. 
d. 73.H – Sites of 15 or more dwellings to be of appropriate mix.  
e. 74.H – Affordable housing. 
f. 91.T – Eastleigh Cycle route Network 
g. 92.T - (v) Eastleigh Cycle Route Network, (vi) improved pedestrian 

links to district centres.  
h. 100.T – Well served by sustainable forms of transport,  
i. 101.T -  contributions towards sustainable transport measures. 
j. 102.T – Safe accesses that do not have adverse environmental 

implications. 
k. 145.OS – refusal of proposals that would result in the loss of open 

space unless (i) ancillary to use as POS, (ii) site is incapable of 
being used as sports pitches, (iii) replacement POS provided that is 
equivalent or better quality, (Iv) development is for outdoor sports 
facility 

l. 146.OS – Refuse if detrimental to the green network  
m. 147.OS – Requires on site provision of public open space. 
n. 165.TA – Percent for art 
o. 168.LB – Archaeological evaluation 
p. 190. IN –only to be permitted where adequate services and 

infrastructure are available or can be provided. 
q. 191. IN –either provide or contribute towards essential 

infrastructure.  
 

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 
 
47. Policy 15 - Hampshire’s sand and gravel (sharp sand and gravel and soft 

sand), silica sand and brick-making clay resources are safeguarded against 
needless sterilization by non-minerals development, unless ‘prior extraction’ 
takes place. This site is not within a minerals safe guarding area.  

 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2011-2029) 

 
48.  This is a material consideration of limited weight due to the fact that it has yet 

to undergo a full examination and is not been adopted. Relevant policies are; 
 

Allocated site – Policy WE2, Land at Hatch Farm, north of Barbe Baker 
Avenue, West End 

 
An area of approximately 12 hectares of land north of Barbe Baker Avenue, West 
End, as defined on the policies map, is allocated for public open space and 
approximately 80 dwellings. Detailed development criteria for the site are set out 
in the Borough Council’s development brief ‘Land at Hatch Farm, West End’, 
adopted in December 2012. Development will be subject to the approval by the 
Borough Council of a masterplan which addresses the following requirements: 

 
i. locating the new housing development on those parts of the site where the 

impact on the residential amenity of the occupiers of existing properties would 

35



be minimised, where the occupiers of the new dwellings would not be affected 
by unreasonable levels of motorway noise and where the new dwellings 
would not be intrusive in the wider landscape; 

 
ii. vehicular access from Barbe Baker Avenue, with the possibility of subsidiary 

access from Barnsland; 
 

iii. the provision of attractive footpath and cycle links to the surrounding area;  
 

iv. the layout and landscaping of the remainder of the site as accessible public 
open space; 

 
v. arrangements for the future management of the open space areas; 

 
vi. the enhancement of the biodiversity and nature conservation interest of the 

undeveloped parts of the site; and  
 

vii. provision of a connection to the sewerage system at the nearest point of 
adequate capacity as advised by Southern Water, and of access to the 
existing sewerage infrastructure for future maintenance and upsizing 
purposes.. 

 
Strategic policies 
 

 S1 – sustainable development 

 S2 – promotion of new development 

 S5 – green infrastructure 

 S6 – community facilities 

 S7 -  transport infrastructure 

 S8 –  footpath, cycleway, bridleway links 

 S11 – nature conservation 

 S12 – heritage assets 
 
Development Management Policies 
 

 DM1 – criteria for new development  

 DM2 – environmentally sustainable development 

 DM3 – low carbon energy 

 DM5 – sustainable surface water management 

 DM7 – pollution 

 DM9 -  biodiversity protection 

 DM23 – Transport – general development criteria including access 

 DM24 – Parking 

 DM25 – residential development in urban areas including accommodation 
specifically designed for older people.  

 DM28 – affordable housing 

 DM29 – minimum internal space standards 

 DM32 – provision of recreation and open space facilities with new 
development 

36



 DM33 – new and enhanced recreation and open space facilities, 
allotments and community farms 

 DM37 – funding infrastructure.  
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (Material Planning Considerations)  
 

 Environmentally Sustainable Development (March 2009) 

 Quality Places (November 2011) 

 Residential Parking Standards (January 2009) 

 Affordable Housing (July 2009) 

 Biodiversity (December 2009) 

 Planning Obligations (July 2008, updated 2010) 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (Material Planning 
Consideration) 

 
49. The NPPF, published in March 2012, replaced the majority of previous 

national policy documents (Planning Policy Guidance and Planning Policy 
Statements) and constitutes a significant material consideration which must be 
taken into account.  The NPPF sets a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, a so-called “golden thread” running through the NPPF policies.  
For decisions on planning applications this means approving development 
proposals which accord with the Development Plan without delay; or where 
the development plan is absent, silent, or relevant policies are out-of-date 
granting planning permission unless the adverse impacts of the development 
would outweigh the benefits, or specific policies in the Framework indicate 
development should be restricted. The transitional period provided by the 
NPPF has now come to an end which means that local plan policies that do 
not accord with the NPPF are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF 
requires that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF.  In other words, the 
closer the policies in the plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the 
greater the weight that may be given.  

 
50. Relevant paragraphs in the NPPF include the following:- 
 

 Para. 6 –deliver sustainable development 

 Para. 7 – three dimensions of sustainability to be sought jointly – economic 
(supporting economy and ensuring land availability), social (providing 
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local services); 
environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built and 
historic environment). 

 Para. 10 – plans and decisions need to take local circumstances. 

 Para. 14 – presumption in favour of sustainable development.  

 Para. 17 – sets out 12 core planning principles, including principle that 
planning should be plan-led, enhance places in which people live, to 
proactively drive sustainable economic development, support low carbon 
technologies, promote mixed use, manage patterns of growth, deliver 
sufficient community and take account of different roles and character of 

37



different areas and recognised the intrinsic character and beauty of the 
landscape.  

 Para. 30 – support reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and reduce 
congestion. 

 Para. 32 – development only refused if cumulative impacts on highway are 
severe. 

 Para. 34 – sustainably located to reduce need to travel 

 Para. 36 – if generate significant amounts a Travel Plan needed. 

 Para. 47 – local plans to boost supply of housing to meet full objectively 
assessed needs of market and affordable housing; to identify key sites which 
are critical to the delivery of the housing strategy, identify and update specific 
deliverable sites to provide five years supply of housing. 

 Para. 49 – housing applications to be considered in the context of the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Policies for the supply of 
housing should not be considered up-to-date if the LPA cannot demonstrate a 
five year supply of deliverable housing sites.  

 Para. 56 – requirement for good design. 

 Para. 58 –decisions to ensure developments establish a strong sense of 
place; optimise the potential of the site; respond to local character and history; 
create safe and accessible environments; are visually attractive as result of 
good architecture and appropriate landscaping. 

 Para. 60 – policies and decisions should not attempt to impose architectural 
styles or particular tastes.. 

 Para 69 – promote safe and accessible environments and developments 
containing clear and legible pedestrian routes, high quality public space. 

 Para. 70 –plan for the provision and use of shared space,  

 Para. 72 –ensure a sufficient choice of school places is available 

 Para.73 – Access to high quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and 
recreation  

 Para. 103 – ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere. 

 Para. 109 – seeks to minimise impacts on biodiversity and protect 
unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution and remediating 
contaminated land where appropriate.  

 Para. 118  - decision should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity.. 

 Para. 120 – Decisions should ensure that sites are suitable for its new use 
taking into account ground conditions, any pollution 

 Para. 121 – ensure ground conditions are suitable.  

 Para. 123 – avoid, mitigate and reduce noise impacts. 

 Para. 126 – conservation of the historic environment. 

 Para. 152 – achieve each of the dimensions of sustainable development and 
net gains across all three. 

 Para. 156 – A LPA should set out their strategic priorities within their local 
plan including the need for homes, jobs and conservation and enhancement 
of the natural and historic environment, including landscape. 

 Para 203 – can unacceptable development be made acceptable through the 
use of conditions or planning obligations. 

 Para 204 – obligations should only be sought where they are necessary, 
directly related, related fairly and reasonably in scale and kind to the 
development.  

38



 Para. 215 – Weight to existing relevant local plan policies according to the 
degree of consistency with the Framework. 

 Para 216 - decision-takers can give weight to relevant policies in emerging 
plans according to the stage of preparation 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014)  

 

 Transport – supports the provision of Transport Assessments where a Local 
Planning Authority makes a judgement as to whether a proposal would 
generate significant amounts of movement. 
 

 Design – Good quality design is an integral part of sustainable development. 
Achieving good design is about creating places, buildings or spaces that work 
well for everyone, look good, will last well and adapt for the needs of future 
generations. Good design responds in a practical and creative way to both the 
function an identity of a place. It puts land, water, drainage, energy, 
community, economic, infrastructure and other such resources to the best 
possible use over the long as well as the short term. 
 

 Contamination – With outline applications, Local Planning Authorities need to 
be satisfied that they understand the contaminated condition of the site and 
that the development proposed is appropriate as a means of remediation and 
it has sufficient information to be confident that it will be able to grant 
permission in full at a later stage bearing in mind the need for the necessary 
remediation to be viable and practicable. 
 

 Biodiversity – Local Planning Authorities should take into consideration 
various publications when taking biodiversity into account and should look for 
net gains. Sufficient information should be sought through ecological surveys 
etc. 
 

 Water quality – advice given re the EU Water Framework Directive and the 
requirement to, amongst other things, prevent deterioration of aquatic 
ecosystems and protect, enhance and restore water bodies to ‘good’ status.  
 

 Noise – potential noise impact needs to be addressed and opportunities taken 
to achieve improvements to the acoustic environment to ensure no 
unacceptably adverse impact. 
 

Assessment of Proposal 
 
51. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states : “If 

regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the Planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise”.  The principle of housing development on this countryside site is 
contrary to the development plan and therefore should be refused unless 
“material considerations indicate otherwise”. The assessment of these 
material considerations is set out further in the report.  

 

39



52. The Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (adopted October 2013) also forms 
part of the development plan but not of relevance due to the site falling outside 
a mineral safeguarding area.  

 

53. The Submitted Eastleigh Local Plan 2011-2029 is not part of the development 
plan for it was not considered in detail by the Local Plan. The Inspector 
concluded  (Feb 2015) that the submitted Local Plan was unsound due to an 
under provision for planned housing during the plan period. It does however 
indicate the Council’s preferred direction of travel for development within the 
borough up to 2029. As a result of its unadopted status, only limited weight 
can be given to the submitted policies. The Plan allocated sites for housing 
based on strategic transport, environmental and ecological assessments 
providing a sound and informed evidence base. This site (WE2) is supported 
by these strategic assessments.  

 
54. In terms of “other planning considerations”, the National Planning Policy 

Framework constitutes a very significant material consideration. 
 

Material Considerations 
 

Five year housing land supply and allocation of housing sites 
 

55. The adopted development plan (2001 – 2011) does not make provision for 
housing for the period post 2011, therefore the adopted housing policies are 
considered to be out of date.  

 
56. Whilst working towards adoption of a new Local Plan for a period up to 2036, 

the Council has produced an interim document – the “Housing Implementation 
Strategy” to support this position which sets out the Council’s approach to 
managing the delivery of new housing in the borough over the next 5 years. 
On the assumption that a number of the sites proposed to be allocated in the 
2011-2029 Local Plan will come forward in the next 5 years, the Council 
maintain the Borough is close to achieving a five-year supply of housing land. 
The Borough Council’s Housing Implementation Strategy explains this in more 
detail. The site at Hatch Farm is one of those anticipated in the Strategy to be 
delivered within the next 5 years.  

 
57. The ability of this development to help address in part the under provision of 

housing supply does not automatically outweigh the restrictive countryside 
policies (1.CO) or the open space policy (145.OS), but as a material 
consideration it must be considered as a benefit that will “boost the supply of 
housing” (NPPF para 47) with the delivery of 98 new dwellings including 35 
affordable units.  

 
58. Also material is the delivery rate of development with some planning appeal 

Inspectors having considered the quick delivery of a sustainable site is a 
material consideration of weight that it indicates making a decision other than 
in accordance with the adopted Development Plan.  The applicant and Council 
as land owner will ensure that the site comes forward within the next 18 

40



months if approval is granted, ensuring all 98 units are built out within the 5 
year period.  

 

Principle of development` 
 

59. To meet the Objectively Assessed Housing need of the Borough for the period 
of 2011 – 2029 (circa 10,040 dwellings), this site has been allocated for 
housing. There is an unavoidable need to allocate greenfield sites, whilst 
ensuing such sites relate well to existing urban and facilities. The site is 
sustainably located abutting residential developments on three sides, with 
good pedestrian links from the development to local services, shops and 
community infrastructure (Tesco – 75m, primary schools between 844 -
1400m, health facilities 565 – 1100m and bus stops within 130m).  With 
improvements to the remaining open space on site, the development 
contributes to the sustainable benefits provided to the wider existing 
communities as well as enhancing the footpath network and links between 
open space at Hatch Grange and Barnsland Recreation Ground.  

 
60. Hatch Farm was secured as parkland and amenity space under the s106 

agreement associated with the residential development at Hickory Gardens 
and Barbe Baker Avenue in 1988. This land was not formally laid out as Public 
Open Space (POS) but used as an informal area with grazing of it, across 
which public rights of way passed. The 2011 update to the PPG 17 study on 
open space provision within the Borough identified circa 19ha over provision 
(excluding Hatch Farm) in West End. By 2029, based on forecast new 
development and population growth there would be a 14ha deficit. With Hatch 
Farm now being added to these calculations, the scheme development would 
deliver 11ha of open space that would be formalised, pathed and have an 
equipped play area provided, contributing significantly to meeting the future 
2029 deficit. The enhancement to the open space responds positively to 
saved policy 145.OS (iii), submitted policy WE2 (iv) and para 74 of the NPPF, 
all of which are material considerations in favour of development.   
 

61. The site is designated as countryside in the adopted local Plan (1.CO) and the 
development of this would be contrary to this policy. The loss of this area of 
countryside is a material consideration that would need to be balanced against 
the aforementioned housing delivery and improvements to the POS.   

 
62. The section 106 agreement secured under outline planning permission 

Z/29910/004 will need to be varied as part of this current scheme to allow 
4.6ha of the parkland to be built on and the remainder of the land to be 
enhanced as pubic open space. If members approve this development 
proposal, officer would ask that they be allowed to progress the variation of 
the s106 under delegated powers.  

 
63. To inform and guide suitable development of this site the Council adopted the 

“Land at Hatch Farm Development Brief” in December 2012 following public 
consultation. The Brief identifies constraints and opportunities which in turn 
informed a development framework plan and indicative master plan.  The key 
aims of the Brief are to ensure integration of the development with West End, 

41



to be a site readily identifiable in its own right based on good design practice 
and sustainability principles. The proposed application is in general 
accordance with the brief and master plan; the developable area and road 
layout remains as planned albeit having been extended to the north to build on 
the good design principles achieved with the rest of the site, the relationship 
and scale between existing and proposed dwellings is as planned and links 
are proposed to the surrounding area as envisaged. The option of land 
transfer along the western and southern boundaries has been omit from the 
planning application due to the presence of the gas main, need to retain 
access to the easement and management issues of these areas. These areas 
of land will be publicly maintained whilst the proposed dwellings are no closer 
than set out in the Brief. Overall the proposed scheme is conforms to the Brief.  

 
Access proposals, traffic impact and sustainable modes of transport  

 
64. It is proposed that the site would be served from a vehicular access point off 

Barbe Baker Avenue, a 30mph single carriageway road (circa 5.5m wide) east 
of its junction with Sharon Road. A secondary access is proposed off 
Barnsland, a road residential in nature which affords links to the wider highway 
network to the north. A significant level of the local objection to the proposals 
relates to traffic generation from the development, the inability of the existing 
road network to accommodate this traffic without resulting in further 
congestion and queuing as well increased “rat running” through Sharon Road, 
Charmwen Crescent and Barnsland.  

 
65. The development is below the threshold for a full Transport Assessment (TA) 

but it is supported by a Transport Statement (TS). It models the development 
as generating in the AM peak 53 movements (15 in and 38 out) and in the PM 
peak 53 movements (33 in and 20 out). Over a 12 hour period this is modelled 
at 471 additional movements on the network. It is anticipated that 50% of the 
traffic will use each of the proposed access when considering the impact on 
the access and junctions further afield.  

 

66. The TS has assessed the following junctions; both accesses, A27 Swaythling 
Road/Barnsland, Sharon Road/Barbe Baker Avenue and Barbe Baker 
Avenue/High Street. It concludes that all junctions will operate within capacity 
with only minor modifications proposed to the Sharon Road junction and 
revisions to the phasing of the High Street traffic lights. The Head of 
Transportation and Engineering has undertaken site visits and secured 
additional information from the applicant on the output of the modelling and is 
now satisfied that the development would not be detrimental to the wider 
highway network or result in demonstrable harm to highway safety. The 
proposals are not considered to increase the potential for traffic “rat-running” 
through Sharon Road and Charmwen Crescent due to limited traffic generated 
by the scheme. The provision of a roundabout at the A27/Swaythling Road 
junction has been discounted in the absence of  evidenced traffic need 
created by this development or cumulatively when considering other 
development in the locality. Furthermore, it is considered such an 
improvement to this junction could encourage traffic travelling from/to the east 
to use this route rather than the High Street/Barbe Baker Avenue.  The NPPF 

42



states “Development should only be prevented or refused on transport 
grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe”. 
The Head of Transportation and Engineering has confirmed the impact is not 
severe and can be mitigated, such that the scheme is not in conflict with the 
NPPF. 

 

67. Both accesses have been designed to meet highway safety standards in 
terms of sight lines, widths and ability of the connecting highway to 
accommodate the additional travel flow. Both junctions have been assessed 
as not experiencing queues or delays at during either peak travel times.  The 
design of the access from Barbe Baker Avenue is a simple priority junction 
and would be delivered alongside the narrowing of the existing Sharon Road 
junction, which in turn would slow traffic speeds and act as a discouragement 
as a through route to the north. Barnsland junction is of a similar priority 
design, the delivery of which would result in the loss of some informal parking 
but not to the detriment of the wider parking provision within this area.  

 

68. The site is well served by adopted footpaths abutting the site and public rights 
of way passing through it. The development provides good links and 
permeability with new links proposed along the main highways leading in to 
the site, paths provided through the residential areas and the existing rights of 
way being diverted to afford green routes in accordance with best practice. 
Amendments are sought to the positioning and width of some paths and 
members will be updated on this at committee.    

 

69. In order to facilitate the development three public rights of way (501, 502 and 
11b) will need to be diverted details of which have been provided. The 
procedure for re-routing public rights of way where affected by development is 
by the making of a Public Footpath Diversion Order authorising realignment. 
This legal process is undertaken by the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services under Town and Country Planning Act 1990, Section 257. A separate 
application has been submitted to engage this process. The positioning of the 
diverted paths has been planned to ensure the routes are not along estate 
roads, avoid woodland areas and the attenuation pond within the public open 
space. The position of the diverted paths is supported by the local Ramblers 
Association and the views of HCC Access Officer are awaited. If members are 
minded to approve the residential scheme, approval is also sought to the 
processing of the public rights of way diversion legal orders under Section 257 
of the Act.   

 
70. A Travel Plan has been submitted and setting out various measures to reduce 

the dependency of travelling alone in cars, in accordance with the principles of 
sustainable development, national guidance and Eastleigh Borough Council’s 
Local Transport Plan. The overall target of the Travel Plan is to create a 5% 
reduction in single occupancy car trips and increase the use of more 
sustainable modes of travel by 10%. Subject to secure the implementation of 
the Travel Plan, the appointment of a Travel Plan monitor and monitoring over 
an agreed period, the Travel Plan is acceptable.   

 

43



71. The Council has been satisfied that the traffic movements generated by the 
development could be accommodated adequately on the existing transport 
network without a severe impact on the road safety and operation of the local 
transport network. The scheme would provide suitable access arrangements 
and improve pedestrian links through the site to the existing footpath network. 
The scheme as submitted is not contrary to saved policies 92.T, 100.T, 101.T, 
102.T and 104.T of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2001-2011), 
submitted policies WE2 (ii and iii) and  DM23 and DM24 of the Submitted 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2011-2014) and the NPPF (para 32).  

 
Noise, contamination and air quality issues  

 
72. The adopted local plan seeks to avoid unacceptable impact from noise or 

vibration on noise-sensitive developments including residential development. 
In situations where the merits of the development outweigh the desirability of 
locating it away from a location disturbed by noise or vibration, the applicant 
must demonstrate the design, layout and insulation can meet appropriate 
standards. Para 123 of the NPPF advises planning decisions should “avoid 
noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of 
life as a result of new development”.  

 
73. The noise survey has assessed noise generated from traffic on surrounding 

highway network, identifying high noise levels but concluding that 
development can be delivered without causing harm to the amenity of future 
residents. The final details of the glazing and ventilation specifications are to 
be determined via conditions in consultation with the Head of Housing and 
Environmental Health.   

 
74. The submitted desk based assessment of contamination concludes that risks 

to the proposed use are low and can be controlled through conditions. The 
Head of Housing and Environmental Health has agreed that the principle of 
development is acceptable subject to a land contamination condition 

 
75. The impact of noise and vibration during the construction period for the 

dwellings is not considered to be unacceptable in principle; the final details 
can be address via a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP).  

 

76. The application site is not within an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) as 
such the principle of development is not constrained by unacceptably high 
levels of pollutants. Overall the development is compliant with local plan saved 
policies 30.ES, 31.ES and, emerging local plan policies WE2 (i) and DM7. 
Emissions generated as a result of the construction stage can be suitably 
controlled via the CEMP which is to be conditioned.  

 
Trees and Ecology  

 
77. The application is supported by a phase 1 ecological survey and a phase 2 

suite of surveys for protected species and reports on bats, reptiles and 
dormice.  

 

44



78. The site consists of two large grass fields separated by a line of well-spaced 
scattered scrub. The site boundaries mostly consist of tree lines, with the 
northern edge of the site adjacent to Dummer’s Copse South (Site of 
Importance to Nature Conservation - SINC), an area of broad-leaved 
woodland. The application site is not located within or adjacent to international 
areas designated for their nature conservation interests, but is within 5.6 
kilometres of the Solent and Southampton Water Special Protected Area. 
Whilst contributions have been agreed to mitigate for recreational pressure on 
SPA, further information and details have been sought to demonstrate that 
water flow rates and its quality would not cause farm to Townhill Stream and 
the River Itchen. The full HRA screening cannot be completed until this 
information is received.  

 

79. The grassland is primarily poor semi-improved grassland of negligible 
ecological value and is not an impediment to development. Two small areas of 
semi-improved acid grassland are allocated with the open space and it is 
desirable to retain these. There is opportunity to increase the overall 
biodiversity value of the site including retain trees and hedgerows (apart from 
where removed to facilitate access road), whilst choosing a variety of new 
trees to be planted in the open space. 

 

80. The site has low potential for badgers but medium potential for their foraging 
along the fringes of the site. There is negligible potential for Great Crested 
Newts, otters or water voles within the water and ditch system bounding the 
site and no evidence of dormice was surveyed. No trees suited for bat roosts 
are to be felled whilst those trees remaining have limited potential for roosts. 
Bats have been surveyed foraging around the site with the majority located to 
the north adjacent to the woodland. Five species were detected, of which 95% 
were common pipistrelles. A small population of slow worms were identified 
along the northern boundary of the site would remain unaffected. The 
ecological assessment makes recommendations on planting and habitat 
creation to ensure protected species and their habitat are retained in a 
favourable condition, the details of which are to be secured through an 
ecological mitigation and management plan. The Council’s biodiversity officer 
has raised no objection and recommends conditions to protect species on site.   

 
81. There are limited trees within the site with the majority of being located along 

the boundaries. The site has a row of mature oak and ash trees separating 
Barnsland properties from the site, whilst to the east and south are younger 
maturing birch trees planted when the adjoining housing developments were 
built. Trees to the west of the southern access are subject to a tree 
preservation order as are trees within Dummer’s Copse South, none of which 
are affected by this proposal. The proposed development will require the 
removal of four trees across the site (two category C trees for Barbe Baker 
Avenue access; a category B and one C to facilitate the development), and 
parts of two groups (one per access) and one hedgerow in part (to facilitate 
the Barnsland access). All of which are graded as of moderate value within the 
arboricultural assessment. The sparse hedgerow through the middle of the 
site is of limited ecological, amenity or visual value and is also to be removed. 
All trees on the boundary between the existing and proposed dwellings are to 

45



remain and will afford screening of the development to various degrees. The 
Borough tree officer raises no objection subject to conditions.  .   

 

82. A Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) is required due to the close 
proximity of the site to the River Itchen Special Area of Conservation (SAC) 
and to Solent and Southampton Water Special Protection Area (SPA) which is 
also listed as Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar site. The Council 
completed an HRA when the site was allocated for development concluding 
that strategically the development of this site would not undermine the 
interests of SAC or SPA. At an application levels, the draft HRA has 
concluded subject to further information on water quality and drainage it is 
possible through appropriate conditions on pollution control, non-native 
species and drainage, to ensure the River Itchen and Solent Complex are not 
harmed as a result of the construction or operational phases of the 
development. Furthermore, contributions are to be secured towards the Solent 
Recreation Mitigation Partnership, there would be no significant effect as a 
result of recreational disturbance pressure on the Solent and Southampton 
Water SPA/Ramsar site.  

 

83. There is potential for increased recreational pressure on Dummers Copse 
South as a result of an increase in population in close proximity to the 
woodland. There is already evidence of informal paths within and use of the 
woodland. This cannot be eradicated completely but through suitable 
boundary treatment, additional woodland planting to strengthen the buffer with 
suitable species and improvements to the public open space in the north of 
the site, the potential for recreational use of the woodland can be reduced.  

 
84. In accordance with the requirements of saved policy 23.NC, 25.NC and 

26.NC, submitted policy WE2 (vi) and the NPPF (para 118) the biodiversity 
value of the application site can be improved via the layout, improved network 
of footpath, new landscaping and the submission of a Habitat Protection, 
Mitigation and Management Plan. During the construction process an 
Environmental Construction Management Plan would be secured to minimise 
impact of works on the site. With planning conditions recommended securing 
the proposed ecological mitigation measures. 

 

Drainage and flood risk 
 

85. The majority of the application site, including all of the developable area, is 
within Flood Zone 1 and is considered to have a low risk of flooding. In the 
northern corners of the site are drainage ditches both of which have 
experienced flooding and are located within flood zone 2 and 3. These areas 
are minor in nature and located 200m from the nearest proposed residential 
area. A watercourse (Townhill Stream) runs along the western boundary and 
contains a small amount of flowing water.  Along the southern boundary with 
Barbe Baker Avenue properties is a 116m long French drain. Having had 
regard to the topography and site conditions the Flood Risk Assessment 
(FRA) concludes that none of the fluvial flooding, tidal flooding, pluvial 
flooding, groundwater flooding and reservoir flooding would pose significant 
flood risk to the application site. 

46



 
86. The Drainage Strategy acknowledges the need to ensure surface water run off 

rates are no greater than greenfield rates to avoid increasing the risk of 
flooding elsewhere. Two storm water drainage strategy options are proposed; 
one utilising infiltration and the other positively draining to a watercourse with 
the flow attenuated via an attenuation pond in the northwest corner of the site. 
Both options would include infrastructure to ensure water quality and flow 
rates meet expected standards. HCC drainage team have raised no objection 
but as the site is extremely wet along its eastern and western boundaries, 
Borough officers have sought further information at this stage on protection of 
water quality, maintaining flow rates and sustainable drainage measures to 
ensure the site and its surroundings are not at risk of surface water flooding.  

 

87. Subject to the provision of the above information, the full details securing the 
implementation and long term management of a comprehensive Sustainable 
Urban Drainage System can be agreed via conditions. The Environment 
Agency, Southern Water and HCC as Lead Local Water Flood Authority have 
raised no objection to the development in principle. 

 
88. Southern Water has indicated that there is sufficient capacity in the foul sewer 

network and that the developer will need to apply for requisition of a sewer via 
their own processes. It is proposed to serve the development with a traditional 
gravity fed pipe and manhole system, connecting to the existing system at one 
of two points. Subject to the implementation these arrangements Southern 
Water raise no objection in principle and the development accords with saved 
policy 45.ES and submitted policies WE2 (vii) and DM5.  

 
Layout, design and residential amenity  

 
89. NPPF highlights the importance and continued emphasis that the government 

places on good design. Paragraph 17 states that planning should always seek 
to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing 
and future occupants of the land and buildings. Paragraph 56 goes on to state 
that the Government attaches great importance to the design of the built 
environment and that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, 
and should contribute positively to making places better for people. 

 
90. The developable area was established at the Development Brief taking in to 

account the various constraints; foul sewer passing east/west, sewer and gas 
pipeline along western boundary, French drain along the southern boundary, 
traffic noise from the M27, public rights of way, topography and the SINC 
woodland to the north 

 
91. Based on the developable area (4.5ha), the proposed development of 98 units 

equates to a density of approximately 22 dwellings per hectare, which 
comparable to the surrounding areas and is an acceptable balance between 
making efficient use of the site and providing a development that relates well 
to the site, its surroundings and provides generous amenity space. The 
general layout is very similar to the masterplan within the Development Brief, 
including development around the base of the hillock, being set back the 

47



prescribed distances from existing dwellings, retention of landscape buffers, 
provision of enhanced open space, equipped play areas, provision of a 
community orchard and development fronting public areas. The increase in 
number from 80-85 units to 98 has not diluted the scheme or increased 
densities significantly, but rather builds on the high quality, spacious 
development principles solely by increasing the developable area by 
approximately 0.5 hectares.   

 

92. The elevated and sloping nature of the site will result in the site being visible 
from some distance away and from closer properties to the west (Charmwen 
Crescent area) and east (Hickory Gardens).  The layout has been designed to 
utilise the levels across the site but there would be a need for significant 
engineering works to facilitate the development. The proposed dwellings are 
of an appropriate scale and mass when assessed against the existing 
dwellings, but officers have sought minor amendments where this is more of 
an issue within the development itself. Overall, through securing significant 
additional planting, appropriate house designs and quality materials the 
scheme would successfully integrate in to the wider landscape. The design 
has been approached in a contemporary method, seeking to not ‘ape’ the 
more traditional design of the surrounding properties but to give the 
development a sense of identity. The use of a limited palette of materials, bay 
windows with grey detailing for rainwater pipes, two storey projections on 
prominent corners and predominantly large windows is acceptable and would 
achieve this, albeit subject to minor modifications to certain elements as 
referenced in the design officer’s comments.  

 
93. Through a mix of dwellings sizes, including the provision of 14no. bungalows, 

visual interest is provided through scale, design and detailing. Careful 
attention has also been paid to the treatment of side elevations of the 
proposed units where these will be visible within the street scene and natural 
surveillance to the public realm. The detailed layout and design of the 
dwellings ensure that the privacy and outlook of both existing and future 
residents would be respected and the relevant criteria of the Quality Places 
SPD and Local Plan policies are met. The private amenity space for all the 
proposed dwellings exceeds our minimum standard. Minor revisions to some 
of the plots and their elevational treatment have been sought and amended 
plans are expected prior to the committee meeting.  

 

94. All of the dwellings meet the adopted parking standards apart, whilst the 
sharing of unallocated spaces for the apartments is acceptable and to 
standard.  Bin and cycle storage is provided for all the properties and 
collection points are proposed where dwellings are located off an adopted 
highway.  

 

95. Subject to the receipt of the amended plans, the development accords with the 
principles of the Development Brief and the NPPF, and meet the requirements 
of the saved adopted policy 59.BE and submitted policy WE2 of the submitted 
but unadopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2011 – 2011).  

 

Heritage Asset and Listed Building considerations 

48



 

96. There are no known archaeological sites within the development area, but the 
site does have some potential to contain previously unidentified archaeological 
remains. The lack of archaeological evidence from the site and immediate 
vicinity should be viewed as much a reflection of the lack of archaeological 
investigation as a genuine indication of absence of archaeology. The desk 
based assessment submitted with the planning application does not 
adequately address the potential for Pleistocene archaeology and the site has 
potential for limited archaeological considerations. While this potential does 
not present an overriding concern it should be addressed through a 
programme of archaeological work secured through suitable conditions 
attached to any planning consent that might be granted. Overall the heritage 
assets within the site are adequately protected ensuring compliance with the 
guidance contained within the paragraph 128 of the NPPF and saved policy 
168.LB 

 
Sustainability measures 

 
97. The application is accompanied by a sustainability statement which sets out 

how the scheme can meet the energy efficiency and water consumption of 
code level 4 as well as the relevant criteria of the adopted SPD. All residential 
units would meet the minimum 15% CO2 offset via the use of PVs, whilst in 
accordance with the Development Brief 6no. units would meet PassivHaus 
certification / principles. 

 
98. Whilst the broad principles set out in the statement are acceptable, further 

details and evidence on achieving the requirements are sought and can be 
secured via condition. The Borough’s sustainability officer has raised no 
objection at this stage. Sufficient information has been provided at the 
application stage to demonstrate the scheme could meet requirements of the 
development and is considered to comply with the aims of Saved Policy 34.ES 
of the adopted Local Plan, emerging policy DM2 and the adopted SPD on 
Environmentally Sustainable Development.  

 
Economic Sustainability 

 
99. In regards to the economic role of development, the NPPF requires “sufficient 

land of the right type to be available in the right places to build a strong, 
responsive and competitive economy “.   

 
100. The construction industry is key to economic sustainability and the proposed 

development of 98 dwellings would deliver direct and indirect employment 
throughout the construction period, whilst the new population would support 
local businesses.  

 

101. The proposals would align with the Council’s strategic priority of increasing 
prosperity to the Borough. A New Homes Bonus would also be received for 
the delivery of new homes, whilst contributions towards local community 
infrastructure can also be deemed economic benefits attributed to the scheme. 
These are all benefits to the economic dimension of sustainable development 

49



and are all considered benefits in the planning balance. Overall the proposals 
are considered to be economically sustainable. 

 
Social Sustainability  

 
102. In accordance with saved policy 190.IN of the local plan development is only 

to be permitted where adequate services and infrastructure are available or 
suitable arrangements can be made for their provision. Where facilities exist 
but will need to be enhanced to meet the needs of the development, 
contributions are sought towards provision and improvement of infrastructure. 
A development should also offer a mix of house types and tenures to ensure a 
balanced and thriving community. The applicant has agreed the principle of 
Heads of Terms, the final details of which are still under review and will be 
secured through a s106 legal agreement.  

 
Housing mix, deliverability, affordable housing and infrastructure 

 
103. The application proposes a range of house types, sizes and tenures, including 

22no. private rented and 35% affordable housing (22 no.), the latter being 
sought in accordance with Saved Policy 74.H of the adopted Local Plan and 
Policy DM28 of the Submitted Local Plan.  The Council’s adopted Affordable 
Housing SPD is a material consideration.  A further benefit is the delivery of a 
proportion of the properties as marketed rented, which will assist those 
residents who are unable to purchase properties but are not eligible or a 
priority for affordable housing.  The NPPF aspires to “deliver a wide choice of 
high quality homes in inclusive and mixed communities to meet the needs of 
different people”, which this scheme does.  

 
104. The Head of Housing Services supports the scheme and its provision for 

affordable housing as proposed. If secured through a planning obligation, the 
delivery of affordable housing is a benefit of the proposed scheme. The 
proposals also makes provision for 22 market rented units 

 
Education 

 

105. In terms of education, the capacity of local schools has been considered in 
assessing the proposed development and infrastructure requirements, and it is 
noted that the potential impact on schools has been a concern raised by local 
residents.  

 
106. Hampshire County Council Children’s Services Department has advised there 

is no spare capacity at local primary and secondary schools to accommodate 
this development and that a contribution is to be sought to deliver extensions 
to primary schools and to assist with the funding of a new secondary school. 
Subject to securing contributions towards education provision via a section 
106 the development would mitigate its own impact on education 
infrastructure.   

 
Health Provision 

 

50



107. Some concerns have been expressed by local residents to the inadequate 
primary care facilities within the immediate area, highlighting long wait for non-
urgent appointments, The NHS West Clinical Commission Group has been 
consulted and their views on the need to secure contributions towards projects 
to improve local facilities are awaited.  

 
Community facilities 

 
108. In accordance with saved policy 191.IN, the adopted Planning Obligations 

SPD and the NPPF, a development must mitigate its impact on community 
facilities, playing fields, areas of off-site public open space etc. within the local 
area, as a result of an increased demand for these facilities arising from the 
proposed development. 

 
109. The proposal includes significant areas of open space exceeding the on-site 

requirements for a development of this size as well providing an equipped 
children’s’ play area. Contributions to other community infrastructure facilities 
are sought and will be secured through a S106 agreement in accordance with 
CIL regulations, the relevant adopted policies and the adopted SPD on 
Planning Obligations.  

 

Other matters raised 
 

110. Council determining an application on their own land – The Head of Legal 
Services has confirmed there is no legislative requirement that prevents the 
Council as land owner and local planning authority from determining this 
application.  

 
111. Development should be on brownfield sites only – The NPPF promotes 

sustainable development and the use of brownfield sites. The adopted and 
submitted local plans also promote this. However, due to the significant 
number of new dwellings required within the borough (circa 10,040 by 2029) 
not all of these can be delivered on brownfield sites, therefore sustainable 
greenfield sites on the urban edge are required.  

 

112. Notification process – The Council has notified residents of this application in 
accordance with the adopted procedures via individual letters, site notices and 
press notices. This follows extensive consultation as part of Development Brief 
and Local Plan processes.  

 

113. Property values – impact on the value of properties is not a material planning 
consideration.  

 

114. Loss of views – the loss of a view over undeveloped land is not a material 
planning consideration.  

 
Planning Obligations/development benefits 

 
115. In accordance with the guidance contained within the NPPF, Saved Policies 

74.H, 101.T, 147.OS and 191.IN of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 

51



Review (2001-2011), Policies DM32 and DM37 of the Revised Draft Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Council’s ‘Planning Obligations’ SPD and 
the requirements of Regulation 122 and 123 of the Community Infrastructure 
Regulations, there is a requirement for developers’ contributions to ensure on 
and off-site provision for facilities and infrastructure made necessary by the 
development, or to mitigate against any increased need/pressure on existing 
facilities.   This is in addition to the requisite on-site provision of affordable 
housing.  

 
116. The applicant agreed in principle to the following developer contributions and 

obligations which the LPA are seeking. However, matters of viability will 
influence the extent to which these obligation will be secured in full and 
negotiations are ongoing on this matter:  

 

 On-site public open space contributions and enhancements 

 On-site public open space/play provision and maintenance 

 On-site footway link improvements 

 Woodland planting and community orchard 

 35% on-site affordable housing 

 Public art provision 

 Travel plan provision, bond and monitoring 

 Transport infrastructure contributions 

 Delivery of improvements to Sharon Road junction and the traffic lights at 
the High Street/Barbe Baker Avenue junction.  

 Community Infrastructure 

 Unallocated parking spaces not to be sold to individual householders 

 Street tree maintenance 

 Sustainable drainage system – implementation and ongoing management.  

 Education provision.  

 Phasing of the development  

 Section 106 monitoring. 

 Employment and Skills Plan 
 

117. The projects and measures identified above are considered to comply with the 
3 tests set out in Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy 2010, 
in that the monies will go towards the projects which are directly related to the 
development, and are fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 
proposed development. The contributions would be index-linked to ensure the 
contributions rise in line with the costs of providing the identified 
projects/measures. The obligations sought are necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms and to meet the needs generated 
by the new residents and the potential impact on existing services and 
facilities. 

 
Conclusion  

 
118. The starting point when determining this application is the development plan.  

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states : “If 
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 

52



determination to be made under the Planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise”.  Saved policy 1.CO does not support housing development within 
the countryside and policy 145.OS seeks to avoid the loss of public open 
space. . As such the development is contrary to the Development Plan. 

 
119. The housing policies within the adopted Local Plan are out of date and 

Members are asked to determine if there are sufficient materials consideration 
to approve the development otherwise than in accordance with the 
development plans.  

 

120. The proposal will clearly have an impact on the countryside and open space, 
through the loss of 4.5ha of informal open space outside of the urban edge. 
The introduction of 98 dwellings will be more visible than existing development 
surrounding the site and will reposition the urban edge further north, closer to 
the motorway.  

 

121. Material to this application is the NPPF’s aim to significantly boost the supply 
of housing and, in accordance with the NPPF, the adopted Local Plan in 
respect of housing supply must be considered out of date.  Whilst the Council 
are at the time of writing, unable to demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply 
based on latest published figures, the development would assist in the delivery 
of housing on a site that is allocated for housing in the submitted but not 
adopted Local Plan. The applicant has confirmed the early delivery of housing 
and the development can demonstrate elements of being economically, 
socially and environmentally sustainable. The site is within a sustainable 
location, abutting the urban edge and within walking distance of shops, 
community facilities and bus stops. It would provide private and 35% 
affordable housing as well as valuable market rented properties. It will also 
provide improvements to the footpath and cycleway network, enhancements 
to public open space and delivery an equipped children’s play area. The 
construction process would deliver a number of employment opportunities 
whilst once fully occupied the development would establish an increase in the 
workforce resources. 

 

122. In the planning balance, and having regard to all the material considerations, 
the recommendation is that the impacts the development can be mitigated 
whilst there are a number of benefits that this scheme would deliver. As such, 
the application is recommended for permission subject to receipt of minor 
revisions to the layout, elevations and   landscaping; information on the 
sustainable drainage system and completion of a section 106 Legal 
Agreement, and consideration of any further consultee responses. 

 
 
 

53



© Crown copyright and database rights (2016) Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

Scale:

Map Ref:

Date:

1:5000

16/02/2016

SU4615

Title:

 

54



 

 

HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY Monday 07 March 2016 Case Officer Gary Osmond 

 
 
SITE: 1 Pudbrooke Gardens, Hedge End, Southampton, SO30 

4RA 
 
Ref. F/15/77732 Received: 10/12/2015     (14/03/2016) 
 
 
APPLICANT: Mrs S Tinson 

 
PROPOSAL: Change of use from domestic dwelling (C3) to 

residential care home (C2) 
  
AMENDMENTS: None 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
PERMIT 
 

 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1) The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance 

with the following plans numbered: Loc 01.  Reason: For the avoidance of 
doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  
(2) The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years 

from the date of this decision.   Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

  
(3) Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved, details of staff 

parking provision and arrangements for school pick-up and drop-off of 
residents shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planing Authority. These agreed arrangements shall then be implemented 
in full as long as the site remains within a C2 use.  Reason: In the 
interests of highway safety and the amenity of neighbouring residents. 

  
(4) A total of no more than four residents can reside at the property at any one 

time.  Reason: To prevent overintensive use of the site and protect the 
amenity of neighbouring residents. 

  
Note to Applicant: It is considered that, subject to compliance with the 

conditions and any obligations attached to this permission, the proposed 
development is acceptable because it will not materially harm the 
character of the area, the amenity of neighbours or highway safety and it 
is in accordance with the policies and proposals of the development plan, 

55

Agenda Item 10



 

 

comprising the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011, and 
after due regard to all other relevant material considerations including the 
National Planning Policy Framework and the Submitted Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014 the Submitted Local Plan 
comprising: the   Revised Pre-submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
2011 - 2029, published February 2014; and the Schedule of Proposed 
Minor Changes, submitted to the Secretary of State in July 2014’, the 
local planning authority is of the opinion that permission should be 
granted. 

 
The following development plan saved policies and emerging draft local 
plan policies are relevant to this decision and the conditions attached to it: 
 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review [2001-2011], saved Policies 25.NC, 
59.BE, 101.t & 104.T 
 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014, the 
Submitted Local Plan, Policies DM1, DM9, DM23 & DM24  
 
In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach 
to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in 
a timely manner. 
 
Under the Town and Country Planning England Regulations 2012, a fee 
is required for Discharge of Condition Applications. N.B. Conditions not 
fully discharged, invalidate the planning permission. 

  

 
 
 

Report: 
 

This application has been referred to Committee because it is considered 
to be locally controversial and because of the site’s planning history. 

 
Description of Application 

 
1. This application seeks the formal change of use of the existing domestic 

dwelling (Use Class C3) to a residential care home (Use Class C2) as a 
home for up to four children and young adults. The home would be run 
and managed by the Serendipity Centre who provide a complete 
residential education and care service for girls aged 9-18 years, but with 
the possibility of someone staying to the age of 21 if required, who have 
severe or complex behavioural, emotional, social or mental health 
difficulties from, for example, a life trauma, autism or a phobia of 
education. If approved this would add to the three existing homes run by 
the organisation together with an independent special school and bespoke 
therapy centre. 

56



 

 

 
 
The Site and its Surroundings 

 
2. No.1 is a four bedroom two storey detached dwelling which sits at the 

entrance to Pudbrooke Gardens. The property is a fairly typical 1980s/90s 
dwelling with an attached single garage to the side, a good size private 
garden to the rear and a large frontage with space for ample parking. The 
property is currently empty and work on refurbishment and extension of 
the dwelling approved in April last year has not yet begun. 

 
3. Pudbrooke Gardens is a cul-de-sac of twelve properties made up of three 

and four bedroom detached dwellings and is located just off Turnpike Way 
close to the Charles Watts Way and Tollbar Way roundabout. Land to the 
south and east of the site is predominantly residential with land to the 
north and west being used for out of town retail and industrial purposes. 

 
Relevant Planning History 

 
4. As mentioned above, planning approval for extensions and refurbishment 

of the dwelling was granted at appeal in April 2015 following refusal by the 
Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee in November 
2014 (Application Ref: F/14/75187) on the grounds of overdevelopment, 
impact upon the character of the area and parking. The Appeal Inspector 
was of the view that the proposed extensions would not have any adverse 
impact upon neighbours, the street scene or the general character of the 
area and that the existing site frontage was more than adequate to 
accommodate the necessary number of parking spaces for a dwelling of 
the resulting size. This permitted scheme would provide a total of six 
bedrooms, up from the current four, as well as an enlarged general living 
space. While concerns were raised with regards to the intended use of the 
dwelling during the course of the application, the Inspector did not 
consider this to be a material consideration and made no comment on the 
acceptability or otherwise of the intended end use. 

 
5. In addition to the 2014 planning application, a concurrent Lawful 

Development Certificate application was submitted for the proposed use 
(Ref: U/14/75255). This application was refused by the Council in February 
2015 on the grounds that the intended uses as a residential care home did 
not fall within the existing C3 use class of the property but was in fact a C2 
use. 

 
6. Following refusal of this Lawful Development Certificate a further 

certificate application was submitted with additional supporting information. 
However, the Council again refused to grant a certificate on the same 
grounds as before, with the decision being issued on 2nd November last 
year. The applicant has six months in which to submit an appeal against 
this decision should they feel it necessary. 

 

57



 

 

Representations Received 
 
7. A total of seven representations have been received all from neighbouring 

properties within Pudbrooke Gardens raising the following issues, 
concerns and objections: 

 

 Intended use of the property 

 Traffic and parking 

 Highway safety 

 Will add to drainage issues 

 Would make the house too large for the close 

 Resulting appearance would be out of keeping with neighbouring 
properties 

 Overlooking and loss of privacy 

 Noise 

 Antisocial behaviour 

 Disturbance during construction 

 Property deeds prevent business use 

 Devaluation of property 
 

Consultation Responses 
 
8. Head of Transportation & Engineering – Holding objection subject to 

confirmation of parking provision / school-run details. 
 
9. The previous application showed at least three on-site parking spaces can 

be provided on the site frontage but more may be required at staff change 
over times and for the school run. Parking on street at the entrance to the 
close would not be encouraged. However, if the intended school pick-up 
and drop-off arrangements, together with staff change over times can be 
confirmed, this may not prove to be an issue. 

 
10. Head of Environmental Health – No objection and no conditions 

recommended. 
 
11. Hedge End Town Council – No objection 
 

Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site 
 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 
 

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policies: 
25.NC, 59.BE, 101.T & 104.T 

 

 Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014 
Policies: DM1, DM9, DM23 & DM24 

58



 

 

 
12. The Submitted Local Plan comprises: the Revised Pre-submission 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, published February 2014; and 
the Schedule of Proposed Minor Changes, submitted to the Secretary of 
State in July 2014. 

 
 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Character Area Appraisals – 
Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB 69) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 
13. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that applications 

for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Para 
14 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and states that development proposals which accord with the development 
plan should be approved without delay. Where the development plan is 
absent, silent, or relevant policies are out-of-date planning permission 
should be granted unless the adverse impacts of the development would 
outweigh the benefits; or specific policies in the Framework indicate 
development should be restricted (paragraph 14). Local plan policies that 
do not accord with the NPPF are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The 
NPPF requires that due weight should be given to relevant policies in 
existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF. In 
other words the closer the policies in the plan accord to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given. 

 
14. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) supports and 

encourages sustainable development which is considered to have three 
roles, economic, social and environmental. Paragraph 8 of the NPPF 
states that, “These roles should not be undertaken in isolation, because 
they are mutually dependent. Economic growth can secure higher social 
and environmental standards, and well-designed buildings and places can 
improve the lives of people and communities. Therefore, to achieve 
sustainable development, economic, social and environmental gains 
should be sought jointly and simultaneously through the planning system. 
The planning system should play an active role in guiding development to 
sustainable solutions.” 

 
15. The NPPF goes onto state in paragraph 69 that “The planning system can 

play an important role in facilitating social interaction and creating healthy, 
inclusive communities” and sets out as one of its core principles that Local 

59



 

 

Planning Authorities should “take account of and support local strategies to 
improve health, social and cultural wellbeing for all”. 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

 
16. Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the 

consideration of planning applications.  
 

Non-material Considerations 
 
17. Some of the issues and concerns raised by those who have objected to 

the application are not material planning considerations and cannot 
therefore be taken into account when determining the application such as 
the potential devaluation of property. The concerns with regards to the 
impact of the resulting enlarged dwelling have already been considered 
and deemed acceptable as part of the planning appeal approval and 
cannot therefore be taken into consideration as part of this change of use 
application. The concerns of adding to current drainage issues in the close 
is something covered under Building Regulations Approval and would be 
considered by the Council’s Building Control Inspectors. With regards to 
deeds restrictions, this is a civil matter and does not prevent planning 
approval from being granted. 

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 
18. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:- 
 
19. "If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 

determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination 
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise." 

 
20. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 
 

Principle 
 
21. The application site lies within the urban edge where the basic principle of 

development is considered to be acceptable, with any formal planning 
approval being based upon the exact nature, design and impact of that 
proposed being considered appropriate and in accordance with the 
relevant local plan policies and supplementary guidance. The most 
relevant policy in this case is saved Policy 59.BE of the adopted Local 
Plan which requires development to take full and proper account of the 
context of the site including the character and appearance of the locality 
and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and siting. It 
also requires a high standard of landscape design, have a satisfactory 
means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians, make 
provision for refuse and cycle storage and avoid unduly impacting on 
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, and 

60



 

 

noise and fumes. Also of relevance is Policy DM1 of the Submitted 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014, which essentially 
reiterates the above requirements. 

 
22. Given that the application proposes no additional physical alterations to 

the dwelling over and above that already approved, the main issues to be 
considered in relation to saved Policy 59.BE will relate to the proposed 
change of use’s impact upon the character and amenity of neighbouring 
properties and the wider area. 

 
Traffic, Parking & Highway Safety 

 
23. One of the main issues of concern from objectors relates to additional 

traffic and potential parking problems within the close which could result 
from the proposed use of No.1 as a residential care home given the 
narrow width and cul-de-sac nature of Pudbrooke Gardens. These 
concerns relate to on-site parking provision for staff, visitors and school-
run arrangements and whether there is sufficient useable space on the site 
frontage to ensure that parking on-street will not be required which could 
result in obstruction to neighbouring residents and the entrance to the 
close. 

 
24. While the submitted drawings show three formal on-site spaces 

immediately to the front of the site, which is normally sufficient to meet the 
Council’s ‘Residential Parking Standards’ Supplementary Planning 
Document, the site also benefits from a sizable tarmaced turning area 
which links the driveway to the road. This large area only serves No.1 and 
has ample room to provide parking for at least another three cars and still 
provide sufficient space to turn a vehicle on-site. 

 
25. Although the concerns raised with regards to on-street parking are 

acknowledged and it is accepted that the intended use of the property will 
not be the usual domestic use, it is not envisaged that there would be any 
additional vehicle numbers or movements above and beyond a normal 
busy domestic family dwelling. Even if this did prove to be the case, it 
would be hard to argue that there would likely be any adverse impact upon 
traffic movement or highway safety given the large area of on-site parking 
available to No.1, meaning that there should be no need to park on the 
street. It is also noted that the entrance to Pudbrooke Gardens has double 
yellow lines, thereby ensuring that no one can park at the narrow entrance 
to the close. 

 
26. With regards to suitable parking provision and highway issues, it is not 

considered that there will be any significant impact upon the close or that 
there are any reasonable grounds with which to refuse the application. 

 
Amenity of Neighbours & Wider Area 

 
27. The principle concern of those objecting to the application is that the 

proposed use of the dwelling as a residential care home for young girls 

61



 

 

with complex needs will lead to antisocial behaviour and conflict within the 
street, to the detriment of the amenity of neighbouring residents. Examples 
of problems at other homes run by the Serendipity Centre have been 
highlighted but no specifics have been provided. 

 
28. While residents of the home will have varying complex needs which 

require specialist care, there is nothing to suggest that problems of 
antisocial behaviour will result or that this would be sufficient grounds in 
planning terms to refuse the application. As highlighted above, paragraph 
69 of the National Planning Policy Framework state that “The planning 
system can play an important role in facilitating social interaction and 
creating healthy, inclusive communities” and sets out as one of its core 
principles that Local Planning Authorities should “take account of and 
support local strategies to improve health, social and cultural wellbeing for 
all”. Providing care in the community has long been promoted for people 
with varying needs and is often the best way in which to ensure that those 
needing help have the opportunity to integrate and thrive within their 
communities. While this approach may not be suitable for all, many of the 
young women cared for by the Serendipity Centre have undergone quite 
traumatic experiences and need a safe and stable domestic environment 
in which to overcome their problems. 

 
29. The proposal is for a modest home for four girls/young women, who would 

be living there under constant and controlled supervision. While it is 
accepted that there may well be occasional instances of disturbance, there 
is nothing to suggest that this would be any greater than that of a normal 
large busy family or of such a regular occurrence to warrant a clear and 
justifiable refusal of the planning application. It has also been established 
that vehicle movements associated with the use are also unlikely to result 
in any adverse disturbance to neighbouring residents, particularly given 
the location of No.1 directly at the entrance to the close. That being the 
case, it is not considered that there are any justifiable planning grounds 
with which to refuse the application relating to impact upon the amenity of 
neighbours, the street or the wider area. 

 
Planning Obligations/Considerations 

 
30. Given that the proposed use would be unlikely to result in any significant 

additional movements to and from the site over and above a normal busy 
domestic situation, it is not considered that there is any justifiable need for 
planning obligations in this instance. 

 
Other Material Considerations 

 
31. Reference needs to be made the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 

2011 - 2029, July 2014. However very little weight can be given to these 
policies as, although the Submission Local Plan has not been withdrawn 
the Council has confirmed that it has decided to prepare a new local plan 
which will cover the period up to 2036. With regards to this application, the 

62



 

 

new policies essentially echo those of the current plan and are not 
considered to affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 

 
32. Although the concerns and reservations of existing neighbours to such a 

change of use are acknowledged, it is not considered that there are any 
justifiable or measurable grounds on which the application could be 
reasonably refused. It is also unlikely that a refusal for the use as 
proposed would be upheld were a planning appeal to be submitted. While 
this view may well raise concerns with objectors, it should be noted that if 
the application were to be approved, there is then scope to apply suitable 
conditions/restrictions as part of any planning approval which could go 
some way to alleviating fears, such as restricting the number of residents 
or formalising school pick-up and drop-off arrangements. 

 
33. The proposed change of use from domestic dwelling to residential care 

home is therefore considered to be acceptable and to meet the necessary 
requirements of saved Policy 59.BE of the adopted Eastleigh Borough 
Local Plan Review (2001-2011) and Policy DM1 of the Submitted 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. As such the application is 
recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out above. 

 
 
 

63



 

 

 
 
 
 

64



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 7 March 2016 

ALLOCATION OF DEVELOPERS’ CONTRIBUTIONS 

Joint Report of the Head of Transportation & Engineering with the 
Head of Development Management and Chief Financial Officer 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that this Committee approve the Allocation of Developers’ 
Contributions held within this Committee’s Community Investment Programme 
(CIP) for feasibility and implementation of prioritised transport schemes, as listed in 
Appendix 1. 
 

Summary 
 
Following the approval and prioritisation of local highway priorities that have been 
previously agreed by this Committee and Member consultation at the Hedge End, West 
End and Botley Local Area Committee Members’ Meetings, The Head of Transportation & 
Engineering and the Head of Development Management, in consultation with County 
officers, have matched Developers’ Contributions with local transport schemes.  These 
contributions consist of those currently unallocated; residual amounts remaining from 
completed schemes; and the reallocation of contributions allocated to schemes found to 
be unfeasible at this stage. 

Once all or part of the funding is identified, priority transport schemes can be progressed 
to feasibility and costed.  Implementation will depend on successful detailed design and 
assembling sufficient capital contributions either from Eastleigh Borough Council or 
Hampshire County Council receipts and when schemes are below £25,000 in value they 
will proceed using delegated powers. 

These receipts against schemes will be monitored by The Chief Financial Officer. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 Localism Act 2011. 

 

Introduction 

1. The approval sought from this Committee relates to the allocation of 
Developers’ Contributions held by EBC to fund local transport schemes. 

2. Eastleigh Borough Council holds Developers’ Contributions up to a value of 
£10,000 and contributions greater than £10,000 are held by Hampshire 
County Council (HCC).  The matching process has aimed to make use of the 

65

Agenda Item 12



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

smaller contributions held by Eastleigh Borough Council in order to progress 
transport schemes, topped up and in conjunction with additional Developers’ 
Contributions held by HCC.  This has required close partnership working with 
HCC, which has benefited from having an agreed list of prioritised transport 
schemes as listed in the Transport Scheme Inventory (TSI), which has been 
prioritised by Members of this Committee. 

3. The local transport schemes that are being considered for the funding by EBC 
held Developers’ Contributions are those that were given high priority by 
Members.  Consideration has also been given to the ease of implementation, 
other funding sources available (HCC held funds) and ensuring the 
Developers’ Contributions are being used appropriately. 

4. With funding approved, schemes can be programmed for feasibility and 
progress to implementation where appropriate, benefiting from more efficient 
implementation processes that Hampshire County Council has developed. 

Financial Implications - Capital 

5. Where there is a capital shortfall in available contributions a proposed project 
may be topped up with funds allocated from this Committee’s Reserves, the 
CIP, grants, joint funding sources or HCC capital or minor works programmes, 
if it can be demonstrated that the scheme still offers value for money. 

Financial Implications - Revenue 

6. None.  Any schemes completed on the highway will be adopted by the County 
Council for ongoing maintenance and costs. 

Monitoring and Implementation 

7. Subject to the approval of allocations in Appendix 1, the Chief Financial 
Officer will set up a separate monitoring process for the Committees’ local 
transport schemes.  Each scheme will be allocated its own project reference 
and budget, which can be used for feasibility and detailed design.  Once 
schemes are designed and fully costed HCC may be invited to contribute 
additional funding where available and appropriate. 

Risk Assessment 

8. Many of the schemes listed will need detailed feasibility to identify the exact 
cost and implementation issues including local consultation, all of which poses 
a risk to delivery. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

9. It is anticipated that the implementation of the prioritised local transport 
schemes listed in Appendix 1 will ultimately produce very practical 
improvements to local highway infrastructure.  The elderly and disabled as 
well as young families should particularly benefit from the provision of 

66



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

enhanced networks of dropped kerbs, safe crossing points and speed 
reduction measures. 

Conclusion 

10. The approved funding allocations will ensure the Borough Council, in 
partnership with Hampshire County Council, has a forward programme of 
feasibility and implementation, which consists of local transport schemes 
prioritised by this Committee. 

ED VOKES 
Head of Transport and Engineering 

 
LOUISE O’DRISCOLL 

Head of Development Management 
 

SARAH KING 
Head of Support Services and Chief Financial Officer 

 

Date: 24 February 2016 
Contact Officer: Matt Grantham 
Tel No: 023 8068 8195 
e-mail: matt.grantham@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Appendix 1 – Allocation of Developers’ Contributions to 

prioritised local transport schemes. 
Report No: EN1250 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

67



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Appendix 1 

 

Agreement Title Amount Allocate 
to 

Description Members 
Priority 

EBC Transport 
Funds Already 

Allocated 

Additional Comments 

TR 
F/09/65868 

Spinnaker 
Developments 

Ltd, Land r/o 18 
High Street, 
West End 

£4,421.43 TSI 678 

Provision of a footway on the 
east side of Moorgreen Road 

between the doctors surgery and 
the entrance to Moorgreen 

Recreation Ground 

High £4,824.68 

Funding is taken from TSI 633 
(Chapel Road / High Street 
junction) works which have 

been completed 

TR 
F/10/67473 

Mr J Finnegan, 
hatch Lodge, 27 

High Street, 
West End 

£3,585.99 TSI 678 

Provision of a footway on the 
east side of Moorgreen Road 

between the doctors surgery and 
the entrance to Moorgreen 

Recreation Ground 

High £4,824.68 

Funding is taken from TSI 633 
(Chapel Road / High Street 
junction) works which have 

been completed 

TR 
F/12/71635 

Mr G & Mrs J 
Evans, 47 High 

Street, West End 
£2,623.54 TSI 678 

Provision of a footway on the 
east side of Moorgreen Road 

between the doctors surgery and 
the entrance to Moorgreen 

Recreation Ground 

High £4,824.68 

Funding is taken from TSI 633 
(Chapel Road / High Street 
junction) works which have 

been completed 

TR 
F/11/69451 

1 Elitemurphy 
Developments, 

42 Monarch 
Way, West End 

£724.15 TSI 741 

Shared pedestrian / cycleway on 
Barbe Baker Avenue between 

the B3035 High Street and 
Hatch Mead on the eastern side 

High £3,885.72 
Funding is taken from TSI 678 
(Moorgreen Road footway) due 

to pooling restrictions. 

TR 
F/11/69451 

1 Elitemurphy 
Developments, 

42 Monarch 
Way, West End 

£1,003.11 TSI 741 

Shared pedestrian / cycleway on 
Barbe Baker Avenue between 

the B3035 High Street and 
Hatch Mead on the eastern side 

High £3,885.72 
Funding is taken from TSI 678 
(Moorgreen Road footway) due 

to pooling restrictions. 

TR 
F/10/66724 

Mr & Mrs Hewitt, 
34 & 36 

Barnsland, West 
End 

£8,764.25 TSI 741 

Shared pedestrian / cycleway on 
Barbe Baker Avenue between 

the B3035 High Street and 
Hatch Mead on the eastern side 

High £3,885.72 

Funding is taken from TSI 199 
(Allington Lane to Barnsalnd 

cycle route) the section of which 
is now complete 

 

68



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Monday 7 March 2016 

NAMING OF STREETS 
FORMER MOORGREEN HOSPITAL SITE, WEST END 

                     
Report of the Head of Transportation and Engineering 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the names Bamber Close and Noyce Court be approved as names 
for new streets on the former Moorgreen Hospital site, West End.  
 

Summary 
 
The report recommends street names on a new housing development.  Noyce Court for 
the link road through the site to the east and the link roads adjoining. Bamber Close for the 
west of the link road, closest to Moorgreen Road.   

Statutory Powers 
 
Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847, Section 65 and Public Health Act, 1925, Section 19 
and Local Government Act 1972, Section 111. 

 

Introduction 

1. Work is soon due to commence on construction of phase one of a new 
housing development on the former site of Moorgreen Hospital, off Botley 
Road, West End. 

2. The street names Bamber Close and Noyce Court have been proposed for 
the development. 

3. Bamber Close- Named after the late Dr Claude Bamber; GP medical lead in 
West End during the 1960s to 1980s, as well as long serving Hampshire 
County Councillor. 

4. Noyce Court- Named after the late Tony Noyce; former Mayor of Eastleigh as 
well as long standing Eastleigh Borough and West End Parish Councillor.  

Consultation 

5. West End Parish Council suggested the street names that have been 
proposed following a meeting of their Planning and Highways Committee on 
19 January 2016. 

69

Agenda Item 13



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

6. Barratt Homes has raised no objection to the names.  Royal Mail and local 
Borough Councillors have also raised no objections. 

Financial Implications 

7. The new nameplates would be provided and erected initially by the developer 
and when the road is adopted future maintenance and replacement costs 
would be funded by the Local Area Committee devolved budget for street 
nameplates. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

8. An equal opportunities assessment has not been carried out because the 
report does not contain proposals for significant changes to existing services, 
policies or strategies and does not introduce any new services, policies or 
strategies.  

Conclusion 

9. It is recommended that the street names Bamber Close and Noyce Court are 
approved. 

 
ED VOKES 

Head of Transportation and Engineering 
 
Date: 24 February 2016 
Contact Officer: Hayley Trower 
Tel No: 023 8068 8478  
E-mail: Hayley.trower@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 No. Plan 
Report No: EN1251 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None. 

 

 

70



71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 7 March 2016 

FUNDING FOR LOCAL PROJECTS  

Report of the Area Co-ordinator in consultation with the Head of 
Culture, Clerk to West End Parish Council and the Head of Trees 

and Countryside 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that this Committee:  

(1) Approves £5,000 as a contribution towards the TRAIN (arts) project  

(2) Approves £6,000 for tree works within the Grange Park ward  

(3) Approves £550 for tree works and a £400 contribution towards a new fence in 
Tamarisk Road/Jasmine Road, Hedge End  

(4) Notes expenditure of £3,713 for 9 plant towers in the Hedge End, West End 
and Botley (HEWEB) shopping centres AND 

(5) Approves the allocation of developers’ contributions for play areas at 
Townhill Farm and Carpathia Close, West End and notes that permission is 
also required as stated from Linden Homes 

 
 

Summary 
 
The recommended funding will support projects which will meet identified local needs. The 
projects will also contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities. 
 
Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 Localism Act 2011 

 

 TRAIN (arts) project  

1. Working in partnership with a range of creative organisations including: 
Hampshire Library Service, Southampton Library Service, The Berry Theatre, 
The Sorting Office, and led by Eastleigh Tech Hub, Eastleigh Borough Council 
proposes a broad and ambitious new digital development programme which 

73

Agenda Item 14



 

will enable young people in particular to tell a story across multiple platforms 
and formats including but not limited to games, books, events, theatre, media 
and festivals. 

 
2. The aim is to develop a new generation of writers, confident in their own ability 

to interpret the world in which they live and a new generation of readers able 
to both access and create content using different technologies.  

 
3. Young people will be working with professional writers outside the school 

context, through Young Coders Network, Girls Allowed young digital 
entrepreneurs and storytelling forums. 

 
4. In particular, the Berry Theatre will be able to expand its existing literacy 

programme and the number of schools working at the Theatre will increase. 
The Berry staff have gained a vast knowledge and experience of delivering to 
primary schools. The TRAIN project will enable them to build on the 
Imaginarium programme in which primary children learned how to construct a 
script and then turn their ideas into a script that was performed by professional 
actors at The Berry before an audience of children, families and teachers. 

 
5. The Berry Theatre’s programme continues to complement the activities of 

Wildern School and the D.@RT Centre. This will continue with the TRAIN 
project as this links closely with the existing WordPlay project and ambitions 
for public art on the site which include a listening seat.  
 

6. The project is currently at the pilot stage and has been trialled at the 
Freegrounds School. It has been well received by the children and adults 
alike! A performance on 10 March at the Berry Theatre is being held to mark 
the end of this pilot. Participating schools will also have the opportunity to gain 
the Artsmark. 

 
7. The proposed Children’s Festival of Literature & Storytelling is one of the key 

outcomes of the project and this will be a major event focused on Hedge End 
in 2017. It will be the culminating event for the project but there is potential for 
this to become a permanent fixture in the on-going calendar. 

 
8. To date, the TRAIN project has attracted £75,000 from external funders, 

£10,000 match funding from partners in addition to the “in kind” contribution 
from the Council’s Culture Unit. The Committee is requested to approve a 
contribution of £5,000 towards this project. 

 

      Tree works 
 
9. In accordance with the Council’s tree policy and Tree Risk Management Plan, 

a proactive tree survey has been carried out by the Council’s tree team in 
December 2015 in Grange Park. All the works that have been identified are 
routine and must be carried out within 3 months of the survey.  

 
10. Subject to contractor approval the cost for this package of works is estimate to 

be £6,036. The Area Co-ordinator has asked the Council’s Chief Financial 

74

mailto:D.@RT


 

Officer to confirm that payment for these works is the responsibility of the 
Committee. This has been confirmed and so it is recommended that the 
Committee approves this expenditure from its reserves.  

 
11. Members are asked to note that this survey covers just one ward within Hedge 

End with two more to follow and further surveys in West End and Botley in the 
near future. Members will be notified when further surveys have been 
completed along with recommended works. 

     Tamarisk Road 

12. Residents in Tamarisk Road and Jasmine Road in Hedge End recently wrote 
to the Council asking for additional road and footpath sweeping. This has been 
carried out. The adjoining open space will be tidied up and some fly tipping in 
the area has already been removed. 

13. There was also some concern about the trees in the area. These have now 
been surveyed and members are requested to approve £550 for works to the 
Council owned trees. This can be afforded from the Committee’s revenue 
budget. The privately owned trees have also been surveyed and the owners 
will be contacted to advise them of the necessary works. 

14. The other issue concerned a fence at the back of Jasmine Road. The fence 
has been damaged beyond repair and residents are concerned that their 
properties are vulnerable as the back of their gardens are exposed. The 
residents are claiming that the fence is owned by the Council. However after a 
Land Registry search, it appears that no owners can be identified.  

15. The small works team at the Council’s Depot has estimated that a new fence 
will cost in the region of £2,100. As a gesture of goodwill, it is recommended 
that the Committee grants £400 towards the cost a new fence because of the 
health and safety issues. This could be allocated from the Committee’s 
revenue budget. 

     Plant Towers 

16. The provision of plant towers in the shopping centres across the borough has 
been well received in recent years. 

17. Within the HEWEB area, 3 plant towers are traditionally located in the High 
Street, West End, 3 in Upper Northam Road/Lower Northam Road and 3 
around the Square in Botley. 

18. Due to the growing season for the plants, orders have had to be placed at the 
time of writing. The Chair has authorised this expenditure from the town centre 
revenue budget and the Committee is asked to note this decision. 

19. In future years, it is hoped that local businesses may wish to sponsor the 
towers in order to help minimise the cost to the Committee. 

75



 

    
 Townhill Park and Carpathia Close Play Areas  

20. West End Parish Council has identified the replacement of the play areas    at 
Townhill Park and Carpathia Close as high strategic priorities. This Committee 
has also rated these projects as high priorities in its Community Investment 
Programme. Both assets have been devolved to the Parish Council and the 
Parish Council has allocated £25,000 to its play area reserves for 2016/17. 

21. Townhill Farm is a key play area serving the immediate estate and it is in a   
prominent location next to a playgroup and local shopping centre.           

22. The play area in Carpathia Close is adjacent to Townhill Junior School and is 
well used by children from the adjoining estate. 

23. The play areas have been inspected by the Council’s Parks and Open   
Spaces Manager and Area Co-ordinator. They agree that both play areas 
need replacement. 

24. Currently the only allocated developers’ contributions for play areas in West 
End are:- 

 OSF/12/71412 Mr S Taylor (HGS Developments Ltd) 1 
 Charmwen Crescent, West End Receipt Date: 28/11/2012 - 
 £887.62 

25. There is also an allocation for community youth facilities at Townhill Junior 
School. Given the proximity of the Carpathia Close play area it is suggested 
that this contribution is used to introduce a mixture of play equipment for 
younger and older children. The type of equipment will be assessed when a 
consultation exercise is carried out. 

26. It is recommended therefore that the following developer’s contribution is 
allocated:- 

 DCC/11/69687 Linden Homes, Land to the west of Romill 
 Close, West End Receipt Date: 06/09/2012 - £48,881.10  

27. There are 2 developers’ contributions from Linden Homes which are allocated 
to the playing fields at Cutbush Lane. The playing fields are leased to West 
End Parish Council by Southampton City Council. As a result they were not 
included in Eastleigh’s supply of pitches when the recent Playing Pitch 
Strategy was undertaken. Furthermore West End Parish Council has agreed 
that the replacement of the play areas is a higher priority than any works at 
Cutbush Lane.  

28. Therefore it is recommended that the Council approaches Linden Homes 
requesting that part of the developer’s contribution detailed below for £55,000 
is reallocated to the 2 play area projects which will be packaged together in 
order to achieve economies of scale.  

76



 

OSC/11/69687 Linden Homes, Land to the west of Romill 
Close, West End Receipt Date: 06/09/2012 - £55,000 (part) 

If Linden Homes agrees to this reallocation, the total amount from all of the 
identified developers’ contributions and Parish Council’s play area reserves 
would be £129,768.72. 

 Financial Implications 

29. There is sufficient funding within HEWEB’s revenue budgets for 2016/17 to 
afford the relevant projects. There may be implications for the play areas as 
explained in paragraph 32. 

30. Members should be aware that there will be further tree works required as the 
proactive survey progresses and this expenditure will have to be phased over 
a number of financial years. 

 Risk Assessment 

31. This Committee is providing funding for projects and is not responsible for any 
of the delivery aspects including maintenance and operational management. 

32. There is a risk that Linden Homes will not agree to the reallocation of the 
developers’ contribution for the 2 play areas. Members would then have to 
reassess the options and potentially prioritise one of the play areas. 

 Equality and Diversity Implications 

33. The Council has a General duty under the Equality Act 2010 of ‘eliminating 
discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, and fostering good relations 
between different people’. Funding allocations for projects in this report do not 
directly relate (either positively or negatively) to specific groups with ‘protected 
characteristics’ but will benefit all parts of the community. Therefore an 
Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 

 Conclusion 

34. All of the identified projects will benefit the community within the HEWEB area 
and therefore the proposed funding is recommended for approval. 

JULIA BIRT 
Area Co-ordinator – Hedge End, West End & Botley 

 
Date: 15 February 2015 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 
Report No: AC903JB 
 

77



 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: 

None 

78


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Recommendations of Hedge End, West End and Botley Youth Council for Youth Grants
	AC902JB - Youth Council youth grants appenfinal

	9 Planning Application - Land at Hatch Farm, North of Barbe Baker Avenue West End, Southampton
	10 Planning Application - 1 Pudbrooke Gardens, Hedge End.
	12 Allocation of Developers' Contributions
	13 Naming of Streets, former Moorgreen Hospital Site, West End
	App 1 Street Naming Plan- Moorgreen

	14 Funding for Local Projects

